REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

1000 1ST Street, South Charlottesville, VA 22902

Delores F. Adams
Procurement Consultant

ISSUED March 10, 2021



Small, Minority and Women-Owned businesses are encouraged to apply

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section	Description	Page
	Table of Contents	
	Notice and Offeror Information at a Glance	1
	Schedule of Submittals	3
1.0	Solicitation	5
1.1	Invitation	5
1.2	Background	6
1.3	Reservation of Rights	6
1.4	Cooperative Procurement	7
2.0	Scope of Services	8
2.1	Contractor Requirements	8
2.2	Sustainability Study Requirements	9
2.3	Location of Work	13
2.4	Procedures	13
2.5	Current Contractor	14
2.6	Special Instructions to Offerors	14
3.0	Proposal Submission Instructions	17
3.1	Procurement Standards	17
3.2	Submission of Proposals	18
3.3	Submission Deadline	18
3.4	Confidentiality of Proposals	19
4.0	Evaluation Criteria	20
4.1	Technical Evaluation Criteria	20
4.2	Price Evaluation	20
5.0	Submission Format	21
6.0	Proposals Evaluation and Selection Process	24
6.1	General	24
6.2	Proposal Evaluation	24
6.3	Negotiations	25
7.0	Insurance Requirements	25
7.1	Worker's Compensation	26
7.2	Commercial General Liability	26
7.3	Automobile Liability	26
7.4	Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions	27
7.5	City/Sate Business License	27
8.0	Contractor Responsibility Review	27
8.1	Selection	27
8.2	Assessment	27
9.0	Award Criteria	27
9.1	Award	27
9.2	Contract Award Procedure	28
9.3	Contract Period	29
9.4	Contract Type	29

9.5	Start-up Costs	30
9.6	Confidentiality	30
10.0	Withdrawal/Mistakes	30
11.0	Conflict of Interest	31
12.0	Protest Procedures	32
12.1	Protest of Procurement	32
12.2	Contract Claims	33
12.3	Appeal Rights	33
12.4	Deadline for Appeal	33
12.5	Appeal to HUD	33
	List of Attachments	34

RFP 21002 CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Notice 21002 Sustainability Study

The Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (Authority) is requesting proposals from qualified Offerors to provide a Sustainability Study for the agency in accordance with all terms and conditions and specifications as set out in this Request for Proposal (RFP).

Due to COVID-19, copies of the RFP package can only be assessed through eVA at www.eva.virginia.gov and the Authority website at www.cvillerha.com.

A virtual Pre-Proposal meeting will be held at 2:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 16, 2021, through Microsoft Teams. Interested Offerors must pre-register by contacting Delores Adams at adamsd@cvillerha.com by 5:00 p.m. on March 15th.

Interested firms must submit their electronic Proposal, with the items listed in the Proposal Checklist, through eVA at www.eva.virginia.gov. All proposals must be submitted by 3:00 p.m., Local Prevailing Time, on Wednesday, March 31, 2021.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

Delores Adams Procurement Consultant

March 8, 2021



Small, Minority and Women-Owned businesses are encouraged to apply

RFP 21002 CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Offeror Information at a Glance

Proposals received in eVA after 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, March 31, 2021, will not be considered. Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (Authority) is not responsible for delays due to internet connectivity, unless the eVA site is down. It is the sole responsibility of the Offeror to ensure that its Proposal is submitted in eVA at www.eva.virginia.gov, by the designated date and hour. The official time used in the receipt of proposals is the time recorded by eVA, which will not accept late proposals. Please ensure you are registered in eVA before the due date.

All requests for interpretation of specifications shall be by written request, sent via email to adamsd@cvillerha.com by March 26, 2021, five (5) days prior to the due date of the proposals. Any changes to this proposal document will be issued as addenda, and will be on file in Procurement until proposals are opened. All such addenda will become part of the contract and all Offerors will be bound by such addenda, whether or not received by the Offeror.

This form must be signed, as well as subsequent addenda, and all pages returned in eVA. All signatures must be original or electronic.

In compliance with this Request for Proposals, and subject to all the conditions thereof, the undersigned offers, if this proposal is accepted within ninety (90) calendar days from the date of the evaluation, to furnish any or all of the items and/or services upon which prices are quoted, at the price set opposite each item or negotiated, to be delivered at the time and place specified herein.

The undersigned certifies he has read, understands, and agrees to all terms, conditions, and requirements of this proposal, and is authorized to contract on behalf of firm named below.

Company Na	me:		
Federal Tax 1	D:		
DUNS Numb	er:		
SCC Number	:		
Address:			
City/State/Zij):		
Telephone:	Fax Number:	E-Mail:	
Print Name:		Title:	
Signature:		Date:	

Delores F. Adams, Procurement



CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

SCHEDULE OF SUBMITTALS

RESPONSES DUE: Wednesday, March 31, 2021, at 3:00 p.m., Local Prevailing Time

At a minimum, your response should include the information listed below. Submit an electronic copy of your Proposal in eVA at www.eva.virginia.gov. Offerors are encouraged to use the following Schedule of Submittals when preparing your response. Failure to sign your submission by an individual authorized to commit your firm to the project may render the submission as non-responsive and may not be considered. Failure to submit a document specified in this RFP as listed below is curable if done within the timeframe specified upon our notice to you, however any documents not submitted by the deadline given you will not be considered for scoring purposes.

	Initial
Cover Letter with Company Name; how firm or individual will carry out the	
responsibilities outlined in this RFP, signature and Offeror Information Sheet.	
✓ Tab 1. Proven ability to successfully perform work. Evidence of the Offeror's ability to perform the work as indicated by Profiles of the principals'	
and staff's professional and technical competence/experience and their facilities;	
✓ Tab 2. Past performance in terms of experience with similar projects, cost control, quality of work and compliance with performance schedules.	
Attachment 1 - Experience Form	
✓ Tab 3. Capability to provide services on time and on budget demonstrating	
knowledge of Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations,	
Federal standards or other regulatory agencies' criteria having	
jurisdiction over the agency. Workplan and QC Plan to detail how	
you meet the requirements of this solicitation.	
Attachment 2 – Questionnaire,	
✓ Tab 4. Efforts to Utilize MBE's and WBE's in the Project.	
Attachment 3 – Minority and Women-Owned Business Participation	
Form	
✓ Tab 5. Section 3 Compliance Strategy.	
Attachment 4 – Section 3 Forms	
✓ Tab 6. Pricing Schedule	
Attachment 5 – Price Proposal	
✓ Tab 7. Evidence that the Firm or Individual is currently licensed and registered	
in the Commonwealth of Virginia and maintains liability, property,	
workmen's compensation, errors and omission and automobile insurance.	
Submit Copies of Licenses and Insurance	



CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

✓ Tab 8. Required Forms

- Completed and Executed Attachment 6 Form HUD 5369-C Certifications and Representations of Offerors;
- Completed and Executed Attachment 7 Authorization for Verification of References;
- Completed **Attachment 8** Statement of Offeror's Qualifications;
- Completed **Attachment 9** Conflict of Interest Statement;
- Completed **Attachment 10** W-9 Form
- Completed **Attachment 11** Non-Collusive Affidavit

For Offerors information attached are:

- ✓ Attachment 12 Instructions to Offerors, Form HUD-5369B
- ✓ **Attachment 13** General Conditions for Non Construction Contracts, Form HUD-5370C, Sections I
- ✓ **Attachment 14** Sample Contract

This Schedule of Submittals is provided to assist you in responding to this RFP but is not intended to waive or modify any provision of the RFP.



CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

RESPONSES DUE: Wednesday, March 31, 2021, at 3:00 p.m., Local Prevailing Time

1. SOLICITATION

1.1 INVITATION

The Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (CRHA or the Authority), is requesting Proposals from experienced, qualified firms to provide services consisting of the development and production of a Sustainability Study that will address the transformation and continued operation of the Public and Assisted Housing communities that CRHA owns and/or manages in support of its mission to provide affordable housing opportunities to the low and moderate income citizens of the City of Charlottesville, Virginia in accordance with the Scope of Services and Terms and Conditions identified herein. The study will cover areas to include the Authority's housing communities, programs, operations, administration, etc. currently and in the future.

Interested firms must demonstrate their ability and capacity to complete the full Scope of Services outlined in the Request for Proposal ("RFP"). Offerors are advised that the proposal should provide information demonstrating a well-developed, thoughtful approach to completing specific tasks as described under the Scope of Services.

- 1.1.1 The selected firm shall have at least five (5) years' experience working with public housing authorities, multifamily properties or other commercial/government sites and the proven ability to manage the scope of services outlined in this RFP. Proposals should show that the submitting firm meets the licensure and experience qualifications in the scope of services of this solicitation.
- **1.1.2** Through this Request for Proposal process, the Authority will award to one contractor.

A virtual Pre-Proposal meeting and walkthrough will be held at on 2 p.m. on Tuesday, March 16, 2021, through Microsoft Teams. Interested Bidders must pre-register by contacting Delores Adams at adamsd@cvillerha.com by 5:00 p.m. on Monday, March 15th, to receive meeting information. Microsoft Teams may be downloaded from https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/microsoft-teams/download-app.

1.1.3 The evaluation criteria will give favorable consideration to proposals submitted by providers with significant experience completing Sustainability Studies and/or Strategic Plans for housing authorities.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

1.2 BACKGROUND

Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority is a public entity that was formed in 1954 to provide federally subsidized housing and housing assistance to low-income families, within the City of Charlottesville, Virginia. Under the guidance of a seven-person Board of Commissioners, The Agency is led by an Executive Director (ED) and is subject to the requirements of Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (hereinafter, "CFR"), the Virginia Public Procurement Act (VPPA) and the Agency's policies. Though brought into existence by a Resolution of the City of Charlottesville, it is a separate entity from the City.

Currently, the Agency owns and/or manages: (a) 376 units of elderly/disabled and multi-family Public Housing at 11 sites within the City of Charlottesville; and (b) administers a total of 533 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.

All proposals submitted in response to this solicitation must conform to all the requirements and specifications outlined within this document and any designated attachments in its entirety. All respondents will be required to comply with all HUD (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development) and other federal requirements.

In keeping with its "Residents First!" philosophy and to provide efficient and effective services, the Agency seeks to maintain a sense of safety and security for its residents.

1.3 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Authority reserves the right to:

- **1.3.1 Right to Reject, Waive, or Terminate the RFP.** Reject any or all proposals, to waive any informality in the RFP process, or to terminate the RFP process at any time, if deemed by the Authority to be in its best interests.
- **1.3.2** Right to Not Award. Not award a contract pursuant to this RFP.
- **1.3.3 Right to Terminate.** Terminate a contract awarded pursuant to this RFP, at any time for its convenience upon 10 days written notice to the Contractor(s).
- **1.3.4** Right to Determine Time and Location. Determine the days, hours and locations that the successful Offeror") shall provide the services called for in this RFP.
- **1.3.5 Right to Retain Proposals.** Retain all proposals submitted and not permit withdrawal for a period of 90 days subsequent to the deadline for receiving

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

proposals without the written consent of the Authority Contracting Officer (CO).

- **1.3.6 Right to Negotiate.** Negotiate the fees proposed by the proposer entity.
- **1.3.7 Right to Reject Any Proposal.** Reject and not consider any proposal or proposer that does not meet the requirements of this RFP, including but not necessarily limited to incomplete proposals and/or proposers offering alternate or non-requested services.
- **1.3.8 No Obligation to Compensate.** Have no obligation to compensate any proposer for any costs incurred in responding to this RFP.
- 1.3.9 Right to Prohibit. At any time during the RFP or contract process, prohibit any further participation by a proposer or reject any proposal submitted that does not conform to any of the requirements detailed herein. By downloading this document, each prospective proposer is thereby agreeing to abide by all terms and conditions listed within this document and further agrees that he/she will inform the CO in writing within 5 days of the discovery of any item listed herein or of any item that is issued thereafter by the Authority that he/she feels needs to be addressed or inadvertently limits competition. Failure to abide by this time frame shall relieve the Authority, but not the prospective or actual proposer, of any responsibility pertaining to such issue.
- **1.3.10 Right to Reject Obtaining Competitive Solicitation Documents.** The CRHA website and eVA are the only official and appropriate venues to obtain the competitive solicitation documents (and any other information pertaining to the competitive solicitation such as addenda). Accordingly, by submitting a response to this competitive solicitation the respondent thereby affirms that he/she obtained all information on the approved venues.

1.4 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT

The procurement of goods and/or services provided for in this Contract is being conducted pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-4304 and on behalf of other public bodies in Virginia. Unless specifically prohibited by the Awarded Offeror, any resultant contract may be used by other public bodies in Virginia as allowed by Section 2.2-4304. The Awarded Offeror shall deal directly with each public agency or body seeking to obtain any goods and/or services pursuant to this Contract or from this procurement and in accordance with Virginia Code Section 2.2-4304. The Authority shall not be responsible or liable for any costs, expenses, or any other matters of any type to either the Contractor or the public agency or body seeking to obtain any goods and/or services pursuant to this cooperative procurement provision.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Scope of Services in the solicitation outlines the minimum requested services the Authority requires as part of the resulting contract. Each Offeror is requested to restate the Scope of Services and respond in writing, how the services will be met by the Offeror. When and as requested by the Authority, the contractor shall perform in a satisfactory and proper manner all the necessary services required under this contract with accuracy and integrity as described below.

2.1 CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS

- 2.1.1 Contractor shall furnish all supervision, technical personnel, labor, supplies/materials, permits, inspections, machinery, tools, equipment and services including utility and transportation services to perform and complete all work required for the creation of a Sustainability Study for CRHA.
- **2.1.2** Contractor shall use a multi-faceted approach to:
 - **2.1.2.1** Gather information;
 - **2.1.2.2** Compile a comprehensive review of public housing and other affordable housing communities owned and operated by the Authority;
 - **2.1.2.3** Develop plans and recommend strategies to reposition and revitalize these communities.
- **2.1.3** Contractor shall conceptualize the improvements needed for the Authority's properties to improve their long-term viability and marketability.
- **2.1.4** Contractor shall be skilled in:
 - **2.1.4.1** Facilitating discussions;
 - **2.1.4.2** Analyzing the market for the Authority's properties;
 - **2.1.4.3** Envisioning how perceptions of the properties and their marketability can be turned in a more positive direction.
- **2.1.5** Contractor must be able to identify funding, structures, and partners that could help the Authority accomplish its long-term goal of improving the housing it owns while identifying a fiscally sustainable plan to provide high quality affordable housing.
- 2.1.6 The Contractor shall provide CRHA with the name of a single Project manager who will oversee the process. The project Manager shall physically meet with the Executive Director and/or his representative(s) on request. The Project Manager must also be available to meet, if need be, during the term of this contract with the Board of Commissioners. State if you will be able to fulfill this requirement and list the Project Manager's name.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

2.1.9 Contractor's personnel shall maintain proper ID and wear clothing with company name while working on CRHA properties. No smoking will be allowed inside the buildings, balconies or porches and no alcoholic beverages or drugs will be allowed on CRHA's properties.

2.2 SUSTAINABILITY STUDY REQUIREMENTS

- 2.2.1 Task 1 Evaluate the current physical condition of the Authority's public housing and other affordable housing units.
 - **2.2.1.1** Conduct a thorough survey of the nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land noting building conditions, layouts, compatibility with current standards, amenities, landscaping, traffic flow, and other conditions necessary to develop a full understanding of the viability and desirability of each community;
 - **2.2.1.2** In cooperation with CRHA maintenance and management staff, gain access to one or more of each style of unit in each of the Authority-owned housing communities noting conditions, designs, compatibility with current standards, amenities, health and energy efficiency, and other conditions necessary to develop a full understanding of the viability and desirability of each community;
 - **2.2.1.3 Deliverable:** A minimum 2-page synopsis of the conditions for each housing community noting key deficiencies, challenges that may exist that would prohibit redevelopment, and any obsolete facilities (for interim use and the inclusion in the final plan).
- 2.2.2 Task 2 Analyze the past, current, and future markets for the Authority's public housing and other affordable housing units.
 - **2.2.2.1** Utilizing all available data and resources develop a 10-year lookback at the housing market in Charlottesville neighborhoods where the majority of Authority-held properties are located;
 - **2.2.2.2** Utilizing all available data and resources, describe the current housing market in the Charlottesville neighborhoods where the majority of Authority-held properties are located;
 - **2.2.2.3** Develop a 20-year market projection for the existing Authority-held properties and indicate where the marketing approach potentially needs to be shifted in order to maintain and grow the market for the housing communities assuming the current housing type, design, and size remains the same;
 - **2.2.2.4 Deliverable:** A written Market Analysis of the Authority's properties including a description of the market conditions in the

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

surrounding neighborhoods (for interim use and inclusion in the final plan).

- 2.2.3 Task 3 Research the Best Practices being utilized by public housing authorities to upgrade, redevelop, and reposition their public and other affordable housing communities to strengthen their operating budgets and increase affordable housing for people earning 50% AMI and below.
 - **2.2.3.1** Research the Best Practices of 6 to 10 public housing authorities that are successfully upgrading and repositioning their public and other affordable housing communities to increase deeply affordable housing and financial security for the public housing authorities without utilizing RAD. Best Practices should include a mix of financing options being successfully utilized by authorities while demonstrating the Residents Bill of Rights will be protected;
 - **2.2.3.2 Deliverable:** A 2-page synopsis of each Best Practice (for interim use and inclusion in the final plan).
- 2.2.4 Task 4 Develop a roadmap in the form of a "mini" strategic plan with goals, objectives, strategies, and a phasing schedule that will enable the Authority to move proactively toward a new future for its public housing and undeveloped properties.
 - **2.2.4.1** Compile and publish an interim data report containing the data and information gathered in Tasks 1-3 for review by CRHA staff, the CRHA Redevelopment Committee and by the Authority's Board of Commissioners;
 - **2.2.4.2** Facilitate a 1-day strategic planning session with key CRHA staff, representatives of PHAR, representatives of the CRHA Redevelopment Committee and the Authority's Board of Commissioners to develop goals related to a sustainability plan;
 - **2.2.4.3** Compile and publish a final draft set of goals, objectives, strategies, and a phasing schedule for input from and approval by the CRHA Redevelopment Committee and the Authority's Board of Commissioners;
 - **2.2.4.4 Deliverable:** Final suggested goals, objectives, strategies, and phasing schedule (for inclusion in the final plan).

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

- 2.2.5 Task 5 Develop conceptual designs illustrative of the physical improvements needed to improve the quality, desirability, and marketability of the Authority's housing communities and undeveloped properties for the benefit of current and future residents.
 - **2.2.5.1** For each of the Authority's nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land, develop an exterior conceptual illustration of proposed improvements for a representative unit in a format for internal use and public consumption;
 - **2.2.5.2** Where recommended, develop an alternative schematic floor plan for a representative unit where the typical floor plan for a particular housing community is dated and no longer considered "desirable" or marketable;
 - **2.2.5.3** For any of the Authority's nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land where the layout and/or conditions of the site negatively impact the Authority's ability to provide safe and sanitary housing, recommend a new layout by developing an alternative conceptual site plan for the community;
 - 2.2.5.4 For any of the Authority's nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land where a portion or all of the complex is in need of redevelopment as determined by Tasks 1 4, recommend the higher and better use for the site in keeping with local conditions and market factors;
 - 2.2.5.5 Conduct a series of at least five (5) initial public meetings where the collected data, conceptual designs, can be presented for review and feedback by the public with a particular target being the current residents and neighbors of the Authority's housing communities. Then conduct five (5) follow-up meetings to present the conceptual designs after the feedback gathered at the first set of meetings;
 - **2.2.5.6 Deliverable:** Conceptual illustrations, alternative schematic floor plans, and highest and best use recommendations (for inclusion in the final plan).
- 2.2.6 Task 6 Recommend the redevelopment strategy, partnerships, funding strategies, and ownership structures that put the Authority's housing communities on better financial footing with a more viable and sustainable future.
 - 2.2.6.1 Develop a grid of funding strategies (public, private, & non-profit) and ownership structures that could generally be applied to the upgrade, redevelopment, and repositioning of the Authority's nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land. These strategies should only include options that offer permanent, long-term affordability (e.g., CRHA is not interested in converting to a private Project-

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Based Section 8 platform such as with the Rental Assistance Demonstration program). Facilitate at least three (3) discussions with residents of 3 to 5 CRHA sites and present information to the CRHA Redevelopment Committee. Meetings should be planned collaboratively with the Charlottesville Public Housing Association of Residents (PHAR);

- **2.2.6.2** Rank the 3 to 5 best funding strategies and ownership structures for each site that, if applied, would have the greatest short-term and long-term potential for improving the quality of life for current and future residents, expanding the availability of affordable housing for people under 40% AMI, and addressing the specific needs of each community's physical plant;
- **2.2.6.3** In cooperation with CRHA staff and PHAR, develop a list of potential partners for implementing plans;
- **2.2.6.4** Generate a financial plan for redevelopment and/or modernization of public and assisted housing sites including proposing financial structures that meet HUD requirements and other funding sources if necessary, with input from staff and other stakeholders;
- 2.2.6.5 Investigate and create financial structures that will result in the most efficient use of the Authority's resources, in terms of leveraging other funds and in minimizing the Authority's total financial outlay and risks. Funding sources to be considered should include, but not be limited to, private and public funding resources and new techniques for raising capital, and the use of HUD, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Virginia Housing, formerly VHDA, programs, grants or subsidies for the development and modernization of public and assisted housing inventories;
- **2.2.6.6** Guide in the preparation of project cash flows, proformas, timing, and sources and uses of funds that demonstrate optimal use of revenue sources, and sale of tax credits to potential investors, and incorporation of other sources of revenues;
- **2.2.6.7 Deliverable:** Recommended funding strategies, and ownership structures for each of the Authority's nine (9) housing communities/parcels of land (for inclusion in the final plan).
- **2.2.7 Draft Deliverable:** Presentation to the CRHA Redevelopment Committee for feedback, followed by presentation to the CRHA Board of Commissioners.

Final Deliverable: Presentation to the CRHA Redevelopment Committee, followed by presentation to the CRHA Board of Commissioners.

Material: 20 printed, bound copies of the completed Comprehensive Sustainability Master Plan and a digital copy of the plan.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

2.3 LOCATION OF WORK

The properties listed below are subject to the requirements of this document as well as any other properties owned and/or managed by CRHA during the term of this contract. CRHA may add or delete properties as its inventory changes:

Community	Address			
South First Street	900 Block of South First			
	Street			
South First Street Maintenance	1000 South First Street			
Shop				
Westhaven	800 block of Hardy Drive			
Michie Drive	2021-2025 Michie Drive			
Crescent Hall (Trash Compactor)	500 South First Street			
Madison Avenue	1609-1625 Madison Avenue			
6th Street S.E.	700 block of 6th Street			
Riverside Avenue	309-323 Riverside Avenue			
Avon/ Levy Garage	405 Avon Street			
Scattered Single Family Homes	715 Ridge Street			
	712 Elsom Street			
	604 10 ½ Street			
	613 Hinton Ave			
	905 Monticello Ave			

2.4 PROCEDURES

2.4.1 INVOICES

Invoice for payment is to be sent directly to Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority, Attention: Finance, 1000 1st Street South, Charlottesville, Virginia 22902. The Authority will make payments to the contractor within 30-day.

The Authority will review all deliverables and pay upon satisfactory completion. If work is not to the satisfaction of the Authority's representative, Contractors will be notified to complete the specified task at no additional cost to the Authority. The Contractor will advise the Authority's representative of the day and time the task will be completed. All services shall be completed within three days.

Invoices shall not exceed the agreed prices set forth in Form of Price Proposal of this solicitation as proposed by the contractor and set forth in the contract or as modified in writing by the Authority.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REOUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

2.4.2 **MEETINGS**

Under the scope of services, the Contractor will be required to meet with the CRHA Executive Director and/or staff as needed.

AWARDS 2.4.3

CRHA will make an award to the Offeror whose offer is most advantageous with price and all factors considered.

2.5 **CURRENT CONTRACTOR**

The Authority does not have a current contractor for these services. The selected Contractor shall have a proven and verifiable background in providing the services specified in this RFP.

2.6 SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS

2.6.1 **Definitions:**

Issuing Office: a.

> Wherever used in this Request for Proposal (RFP), the Issuing Office will be:

Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority

Procurement Office

Delores Adams

Procurement Consultant

500 1st Street South

Charlottesville, VA 22902

Phone: 757-391-2913

Fax: 757-399-8697

Email: adamsd@cvillerha.com

- b. Contact with CRHA Staff, Representatives, and/or Agents: Direct contact with CRHA staff, representatives, and/or agents other than Procurement Department staff on the subject of this RFP or any subject related to this RFP is expressly prohibited except with the prior knowledge and permission of the Procurement Consultant.
- Virtual Pre-Proposal Conference will be held via Microsoft Teams: c. Tuesday, March 16, 2021 2:00 p.m.

d. Offerors of Record:

Offerors receiving a copy of this RFP from a source other than the Issuing Office or via www.eva.virginia.gov must contact the Issuing Office via fax or e-mail and provide Offeror's name, address, contact person, e-mail address, telephone and fax number, and the

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

RFP Item Number. Offeror will be added to the Planholders list and will receive notification of any addenda to the RFP.

2.6.2 Questions:

Offerors must submit questions regarding the Request For Proposal (RFP) in writing to the Issuing Office to <u>adamsd@cvillerha.com</u> no later than **March 26, 2021**. Necessary replies will be issued to all Offerors of record as addenda that shall become part of the contract documents. Oral instructions do not form a part of the Proposal documents.

2.6.3 Offeror is responsible for checking the www.eva.virginia.gov or hours prior to Proposal closing to secure any addenda issued for this RFP.

2.6.4 Changes or Modifications:

Changes or modifications to this Request for Proposals made prior to the date and time of closing will be addressed by addenda from the Issuing Office. Offerors are to include signed addenda with their Proposal. Oral communications are not a part of the Proposal documents. This RFP and any addenda shall be incorporated, by reference, into any resulting contract.

2.6.5 RFP Closing:

Proposals will be time stamped via eVA no later than **3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, March 31, 2021**. Proposals received after the specified date and time (time stamped 3:01 P.M. or later) will not be considered and will not be accepted by eVA.

2.6.6 Equal Employment Opportunity and Supplier Diversity:

Both the Contractor and the Authority have, pursuant to HUD regulations, certain responsibilities pertaining to the hiring and retention of personnel and subcontractors.

- **2.6.6.1** Within 2 CFR 200.321 Contracting with small and minority firms, women's business enterprise and labor surplus area firms.
 - (a) The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.
 - (b) Affirmative steps must include:
 - (1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
 - (2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

- (3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
- (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
- (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
- (6) Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (1) through (5) of this section.

2.6.6.2 Within HUD Procurement Handbook 7460.8 REV 2 it states:

Section 15.5.A, Required Efforts. Consistent with 2.6.6.2.1 Presidential Orders 11625, 12138, and 12432, the <Agency> shall make every effort to ensure that small businesses, MBEs, WBEs, and labor surplus area businesses participate in <Agency> contracting. 2.6.6.6.2 Section 15.5.B, Goals. <The Agency> is encouraged to establish goals by which they can measure the effectiveness of their efforts in implementing programs in support of . . . contracting with disadvantaged firms. It is important to ensure that the means used to establish these goals do not have the effect of limiting competition and should not be used as mandatory set-aside or quota, except as may otherwise be expressly authorized in regulation or Some localities have adopted minority statute.

contracting set-aside policies or

requirements for full and open competition.

limitations, which may be in conflict with Federal

geographic

2.6.6.3 Within our Authority Procurement Policy it states that our Authority shall make efforts to ensure that small and minority-owned businesses, women's business enterprises, labor surplus area businesses, and individuals or firms located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of a CRHA community are used when possible. Such efforts shall include, but shall not be limited to:

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

- 2.6.6.3.1 Including such firms, when qualified, on solicitation mailing lists;
- 2.6.6.3.2 Encouraging their participation through direct solicitation of bids or proposals whenever they are potential sources;
- 2.6.6.3.3 Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by such firms;
- 2.6.6.3.4 Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by such firms;
- 2.6.6.3.5 Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce and the Department of Minority Business Enterprise;
- 2.6.6.3.6 Including in contracts a clause requiring contractors, to the greatest extent feasible, to provide opportunities for training and employment for lower income residents of the housing community area and to award subcontracts for work in connection with the community to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the community, as described in 24 CFR 135 and Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968;
 - a. Requiring prime contractors, when subcontracting is anticipated, to take the positive steps listed above;
 - b. Monitor Section 3, minority and women-owned business contracts by performance tracking, reporting and compliance.
- 2.6.6.3.7 Goals may be established by CRHA periodically for participation by small businesses, minority-owned businesses, women's business enterprises, labor surplus area businesses, and business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the community, in CRHA's prime contracts and subcontracting opportunities.

3. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

3.1 Procurements Standards

All matters and issues related to this RFP and any contract resulting from the RFP shall be governed by the procurement principles set forth in the 2 CFR Part 200, 24 CFR Part 85, HUD Procurement Handbook for Public Housing Agencies, Handbook 7460.8, REV-2, (2/2007); the Virginia Public Procurement Act (VPPA) (Section 2.2-4300, et seq. of the Virginia Code of 1950, as amended); and the Statement on Procurement Policy for the Charlottesville Redevelopment and

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Housing Authority, and its implementing procedures. In the event of a conflict between this RFP and Handbook 7460.8 or CRHA procurement policy or procedures, the provision of Handbook 7460.8 shall govern.

3.2 Submission of Proposal

Any party interested in being considered for award must submit a proposal package in response to this RFP in accordance with the instructions and terms hereunder and must demonstrate that the proposed Contractor is qualified, capable and ready to provide Services immediately upon selection.

By submitting a response, the Offeror agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this RFP. Offerors are expected to examine <u>ALL</u> elements of the RFP prior to preparing their response. Failure to do so will be at the Offeror's risk. All costs incurred, directly or indirectly, by the Offeror in response to this RFP shall be the sole responsibility of the Offeror and shall be borne by the Offeror.

The proposal package must be submitted via eVA, the Commonwealth of Virginia electronic procurement website at www.eva.virginia.gov. The original must contain an original or electronic signature of an authorized representative of the Offeror. The proposals must be submitted on eVA. The authorized representative of the Offeror must initial all corrections made on the Proposal package. The company name must appear on the cover sheet. The proposal package must include all documents, materials and information required herein. Any omission of information by the Offeror is at the Offerors own risk, as the Authority Evaluation Panel will only consider information submitted in the proposal package on or before the submission deadline, except as noted elsewhere in this RFP.

3.3 Submission Deadline

The Authority must receive the Offeror's proposal package by **3:00 p.m.**, Local Prevailing Time **March 31, 2021, on eVA at www.eva.virginia.gov**. It is the Offeror's responsibility to ensure that the proposal package is received by the designated time and date. Proposal packages which for any reason are not received within the deadline will not be considered. Submissions by electronic transmission, telegram, telephone, mail, or facsimile will not be accepted by the Authority. All proposals must be uploaded to **www.eva.virginia.gov.**

Pre-proposal Conference

A Pre-Proposal Conference will be held on **Tuesday, March 16, 2021,** The virtual pre-proposal conference will be held on Microsoft Teams. **ALL OFFERORS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND.**

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

3.4 Confidentiality of Proposals

There will be no public opening of proposal packages. All proposal packages and information concerning same shall remain confidential until all negotiations are completed and the Notice of Award is issued. Offerors are hereby notified that all proposal packages received by the Authority shall be included as part of the official contract file. Therefore, any part of the proposal package that is not considered confidential, privileged or proprietary under any applicable Federal, State or local law may be available for public inspection upon completion of the procurement process. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the applicable provisions of Federal, State and local laws shall govern the confidentiality of proposal packages despite anything contrary to this provision stated in the Request for Proposals.

Ownership of all data, materials, and documentation originated and prepared for the Authority pursuant to the RFP shall belong exclusively to the Authority and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the *Virginia Freedom of Information Act*. Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by an Offeror shall not be subject to public disclosure under the *Virginia Freedom of Information Act*; however, the Offeror must invoke the protections of § 2.2-4342F of the *Code of Virginia*, in writing, either before or at the time the data or other material is submitted. The written notice must specifically identify the data or materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. The proprietary or trade secret material submitted must be identified by some distinct method such as highlighting or underlining and must indicate only the specific words, figures, or paragraphs that constitute trade secret or proprietary information. The classification of an entire proposal document, line item prices, and/or total proposal prices as proprietary or trade secrets is not acceptable and may result in rejection of the proposal.

Therefore, any part of the proposal package, which, in the opinion of counsel to the Authority, is not exempt from production under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, shall be available for public inspection upon completion of the procurement process.

Should the proposal contain proprietary information, upload a redacted copy of the proposal and attachments with proprietary portions removed or blacked out. The electronic file should also include a copy of the redacted copy labelled as such. The redacted copy should be clearly marked "Redacted Copy" on the front cover. The classification of an entire proposal document, line item prices and/or total proposal prices as proprietary or trade secrets is not acceptable. CRHA shall not be responsible for the Offeror's failure to exclude proprietary information from this redacted copy.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

4. EVALUATION CRITERIA

Selection of a firm to render services pursuant to this RFP will be made in accordance with HUD, VPPA and Authority procurement regulations and the Evaluation Criteria outlined below. All responsive proposal packages received by the time and date specified in this RFP shall be evaluated by the RFP Evaluation Panel. The Authority will select an Offeror(s) whose Proposal is most advantageous to the Authority.

4.1 Technical Evaluation Criteria

Evaluation Factors. The following factors will be utilized by the Authority to evaluate each proposal submittal received; award of points for each listed factor will be based upon the documentation that the Offeror submits within his/her proposal submittal:

EVALUATION CRITERIA	FACTOR	POINT
	TYPE	VALUE
Evidence of the staff's ability to perform the work as indicated by experience with similar projects, agencies and clients. Profiles of the principals' and staff's technical background, professional competence and availability.	Subjective (Technical)	25 points
Past performance of the contractor in terms of experience with Public Housing Authorities (PHAs), Multifamily Housing Communities, etc. Experience with Cost Control, quality of Work and compliance with performance schedules.	Subjective (Technical)	25 points
Capability to provide services on time and on budget demonstrating knowledge of local and state laws, federal standards or other regulatory agencies' criteria having jurisdiction over the Authority. Quality of Workplan, Quality Control Plan and Methodology, organization and responsiveness of proposal.	Subjective (Technical)	20 points
Efforts to Utilize MBE's and WBE's in the Project	Objective (Technical)	5 points
Section 3 Compliance Strategy	Objective (Technical)	5 points
Form of Price	Objective	20 points
Evidence that the Firm or Individual is currently meets insurance requirements.	Objective (Technical)	YES/NO
TOTAL POINTS AVAILABLE	Objective	100 points

4.2 Price Evaluation

Price Evaluation will be made reviewing the pricing for each of the Task included in the completed **Attachment 5**. Proposed pricing for each item listed in **Attachment 5** will be compared to the range of proposed pricing submitted in all Proposals as well as the Authority's price estimate. Any materially unbalanced

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Proposals will be rejected. A proposal is materially unbalanced when it is based on prices significantly understated for some work and prices which are significantly overstated for other work. Any determination of materially unbalanced pricing will be made considering both the pricing contained in proposals received in response to this Request and prices historically paid by the Authority for like services. Please refer to Section 6 for an in-depth discussion of the evaluation process.

5. SUBMISSION FORMAT

In submitting a response, the Offeror acknowledges that the Authority shall not compensate the Offeror for any submission or contract negotiation costs, including without limitation costs of preparation, appearances for interviews, and/or travel expenses. It is essential that the Offeror selected have the necessary knowledge, skills and experience to implement all aspects of the work. All work is to be performed with the highest degree of professional standards, in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, procedures, criteria and requirements; to include all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations. Please be sure to submit proposals in the following order with the tab number clearly indicated. Failure to follow this format or omission of information responsive to these requirements may, in the Authority's sole and absolute discretion, result in disqualification of the Offeror from the RFP process.

Tab 1. Evidence of the Offeror's ability to perform the work as indicated by past performance in terms of experience providing Sustainability Plans. Profiles of the principals' and staff's professional and technical competence/experience and availability. Include individual resumes for all key personnel and team members. (25 Points)

This criterion considers the Experience of the individual(s) with Sustainability and Strategic Planning. Offerors should, at a minimum, include an organization chart and individual resumes/licenses for all key personnel and team members. Please list their names, titles and role below and attach resumes. Resumes should include the following information: Name of the individual; a description of the functions the individual will perform and his/her title or position; the individual's relevant educational background and work experience; the specialized skills, training, credentials or accomplishments of the individual that are relevant to the required services; and any similar or comparable projects on which the key personnel have served in positions of similar or comparable responsibility within the last five years. Include the name, e-mail address, address and phone number of the contact person for each.

Tab 2. Past performance in terms of experience with similar projects, cost control, quality of Work and compliance with performance schedules.

(25 Points)

The submission must contain information demonstrating the technical background, professional competence and experience of the organization and the Offeror's

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

capability to coordinate and manage the expected work in the tasks described under the Scope of Services in Section 2. Describe at least five projects or contracts that you have worked on that are relative to the work described in the RFP. The Authority must be able to verify references under this Evaluation Criterion.

Attach a list of similar clients, giving name, address, size of agency, type of services provided and length of contract for each similar client that your organization has served in the last five years. Provide for each, the name, e-mail address, address and phone number for the contact or representative.

Complete Attachment 1- Experience List.

Tab 3. Capability to provide services on time and on budget demonstrating knowledge of Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations, federal standards or other regulatory agencies' criteria having jurisdiction over the project. Areas covered include Workplan, Quality Control Process and Methodology, organization and responsiveness of proposal. (20 Points)

Offerors should describe their approach to providing a comprehensive Sustainability Plan meeting the requirements of the RFP, project management methodologies or workplan and describe their expertise as it relates to public housing authorities, multifamily and commercial properties.

Methodology: Offeror shall provide a description outlining the services to be performed. Such description should, at a minimum provide:

- Offerors understanding of the service to be provided;
- Communication plan
- Proposed methods and equipment to be used;
- Address elements as personnel assigned;
- Assistance and materials to be furnished by CRHA;
- Project plan and any other pertinent information
- Quality Control Plan

Complete Attachment 2 - Questionnaire.

Tab 4. Efforts to Utilize MBE's and WBE's in the Project (5 Points)

Please provide information on your organization's efforts to utilize Small, Minority and Women-owned businesses or your ownership designations if you are a MBE and/or WBE. Refer to **Attachment 3 – MBE & WBE** form for the Authority's policy regarding Minority and Women Business Enterprises. If applicable, provide the names, addresses, telephone numbers and MBE/WBE certifications of all MBEs and WBEs who are taken into account in your completion of **Attachment 3**. Provide a description of the work to be performed by each firm and the proposed percentage of the total contract dollar amount that will be awarded to each firm.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Tab 5. Section 3 Compliance Strategy

(5 Points)

Please provide information on your organization's Section 3 experience and refer to **Attachment 4** for CRHA's Section 3 Program and Certification. At a minimum, use **Attachment 4** to detail your status as a Section 3 Business and to outline your Section 3 Compliance Strategy. Any additional information that you provide will be considered.

Tab 6. Pricing Schedule

(20 Points)

Please complete forms and submit a proposal for each Task outlined in the RFP. **See Attachment 5 – Price Proposal.**

Tab 7. Evidence that the Firm or Individual is currently licensed and registered in the Commonwealth of Virginia and maintains liability, property, workmen's compensation, errors and omissions and automobile insurance.

Please attach a copy of the firm's and staff's licenses and insurance certificates.

(Note: This is a YES or NO criterion: If the answer is NO, the firm may be disqualified, not point-scored).

Tab 8. Required Forms

- Completed and Executed Attachment 6 Form HUD 5369-C Certifications and Representations of Offerors;
- o Completed and Executed **Attachment 7** Authorization for Verification of References;
- o Completed **Attachment 8** Statement of Offeror's Qualifications
- o Completed **Attachment 9** Conflict of Interest Statement
- o Completed **Attachment 10** W-9 Form
- o Completed Attachment 11 Non-Collusive Affidavit

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

6. PROPOSALS EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS

6.1 General

All responsive proposal packages received by the Authority within the established deadline that meet the submission requirements will be evaluated by the RFP Evaluation Panel consisting of three (3) or more voting staff members.

PLEASE NOTE: No proposer shall be informed at any time during or after the RFP process as to the identity of any evaluation committee member. If, by chance, an Offeror does become aware of the identity of such person(s), he/she SHALL NOT make any attempt to contact or discuss with such person anything related to this RFP. As detailed within of this document, the designated Contracting Officer is the only person at the Authority that the Offerors shall contact pertaining to this RFP. Failure to abide by this requirement may (and most likely will) cause such Offeror(s) to be eliminated from consideration for award.

6.2 Proposal Evaluation

The Contracting Officer will forward responsive Proposals to the RFP Evaluation Panel. Each such Proposal will be evaluated by the RFP Evaluation Panel using the selection criteria set forth in Section 4 of this RFP and scored on the basis of the information contained in the Proposal. The evaluation of each Proposal using the Technical Evaluation Criteria will consider each Proposal's own individual merit and not analyze a proposal in comparison with other proposals. The sum of the points assigned to each Proposal by an individual panel member shall be averaged with all the panel members' scores for each Offeror and these numbers shall be the "Final Technical Score" for each Offeror.

Proposals determined to be potentially acceptable shall be included in the Competitive Range. Further, CRHA reserves the right to establish minimum requirements for the competitive range, based on the Proposals received. All Proposals in the Competitive Range will be subject to the Contractor Responsibility Review, as detailed in Section 8, and must successfully complete such review and will move forward to the Price Evaluation. Offerors whose Proposals are not in the Competitive Range shall be excluded from the remainder of the selection process.

In order to achieve the overall objectives of this RFP, the Authority reserves the right:

- To reject any and all proposals at any time prior to the execution of a contract;
- To negotiate reasonable changes in the proposed project;
- To waive irregularities or non-essential requirements of this RFP in the best interests of the Authority; and/or
- To request additional information as may be necessary to conclude the selection process.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

Points Awarded Range. Pertaining to the Technical Factors, please note the following range of points awarded (points pertaining to this RFP are shaded—please also see the Evaluation Factors detailed within the preceding Section 4.1):

Points Awarded Range							
Classification*	Rating	%	5	10	15	20	25
Acceptable	Excellent	75%/+	4-5	8-10	14-15	19-20	21-25
Acceptable	Very Good	70%/+	3.5	7	11-13	16-18	18-20
Potentially Acceptable	Good	65%/+	3.25	6.5	9-10	14-15	15-17
Potentially Acceptable	Average	60%/+	3	6	6-8	12-13	13-14
Unacceptable	Poor	<60%	0-2	0-5	0-5	0-11	0-12

^{**}Total available points to be awarded, minus preference points.

6.3 Negotiations

Upon a determination by the Authority of the availability of funds, the Authority may negotiate a contract with any one or more of the responsible Offeror(s) within the Competitive Range. Any contract awarded pursuant to this RFP shall be made to the responsible Offeror(s) whose proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to Authority, price and technical factors considered. Award will not necessarily be made to the Offeror(s) submitting the lowest price. The Authority reserves the right to conduct negotiations, oral and/or written, on any element of the contract including price. A Best and Final (BAFO) will be requested from Offerors included in negotiations.

The Authority reserves the right to make multiple awards as a result of this solicitation. Should the Authority determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one Offeror is fully qualified, or that one Offeror is clearly more highly qualified and suitable than the others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to that Offeror

7. <u>INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS</u>

The proposal package must include evidence of the Offeror's ability to provide Professional Worker's Compensation Insurance (or evidence that Offeror is not required to provide such insurance under applicable law), Public Liability, Automobile, Professional Liability and/or Errors and Omissions and Property Insurance coverage. Such insurance shall be procured from a company licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia and maintained for the entire duration of the proposed contract. Deductible levels shall not exceed \$1,000 per occurrence on any policy. Proof that these requirements can be met must be provided prior to award.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

All policies must be in amounts acceptable to the Authority. Upon Notice of Award, the Authority must be named as an additional insured on all policies and the policy must provide that coverage cannot be canceled without notice to the Authority at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of such cancellation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Authority reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to raise, waive or reduce the limits of any insurance coverage, including deductibles, required under this Request for Proposals, or to otherwise modify insurance requirements as it deems appropriate.

The Contractor shall furnish a new certificate prior to any change or cancellation date. The failure of the Contract to deliver a new and valid certificate will result in suspension of all payments until the new certificate is furnished. If proper proof of insurance is not met within 10 days of Notice of Award, the Authority may immediately cancel any contract.

7.1 Worker's Compensation

- a. Coverage to be in compliance with the Workers Compensation Law of the Commonwealth of Virginia.
- b. State.....Statutory
- c. Applicable Federal.....Statutory
- d. Employer's Liability.....\$100,000
- e. Benefits Required by Union Labor Contractors......As Applicable
- **7.2** Commercial General Liability (coverage against losses resulting in bodily injury, personal injury and property damage caused by or arising out of the contractor's operations under the contract; including Contractual Liability; Products and Completed Operations; Premises Operations):
 - a. Combined Single Limit:

\$3,000,000 for Each Occurrence, in primary policy or through use of Umbrella or Excess Limits.

If policy contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to each project.

- b. Products and Completed Operations Insurance shall be maintained for a minimum period of one (1) year after final payment, and the Contractor shall continue to provide evidence of such coverage to the City on an annual basis.
- 7.3 Automobile Liability (Owned, Non-Owned, Hired)

\$3,000,000 for Each Accident (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) in primary policy or through use of Umbrella or Excess Limits.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

7.4 Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions:

Minimum Limits:

\$3,000,000.....Each Claim

7.5 City/State Business License. If applicable, a copy of the Offeror's license(s) allowing that entity to provide such services within the City of Charlottesville and/or the Commonwealth of Virginia.

8. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY REVIEW

8.1 Selection

The Authority shall award contracts only to responsible contractors who have the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of this Request for Proposals. Therefore, following technical evaluations, the Authority shall assess the responsibility of the highest rated firms prior to award of the contract. The Authority's determination of contractor responsibility may include, but not be limited to consideration of the following:

- Compliance with public policy, including compliance with Federal, State and local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances;
- Record of past performance, years of experience and ability to maintain commitment for the duration of the contract;
- Financial, staff, organizational and technical resources (including computer and technical equipment); and
- Eligibility for award of a federally assisted contract (e.g., debarment).

8.2 Assessment

In assessing the Offeror's responsibility, the Authority may request the Offeror being considered for award to submit additional information, statements, and/or other documentation regarding any of the factors enumerated above. Failure of such Offeror to provide such additional information within the time requested by the Authority may render the Offeror ineligible for award.

9. AWARD CRITERIA

9.1 Award

Following the evaluation of Proposals, the Authority will compose a list of highestrated, responsible Offerors to determine the competitive range. The Authority shall engage in individual discussions with two or more Offerors deemed fully qualified, responsible and suitable based on initial responses and with emphasis on professional competence, to provide the required services.

At the sole discretion of the Authority, Offerors who are in the Competitive Range may be asked to make a presentation of the proposal during any negotiations that may be held. The purpose of the presentation will be to provide an opportunity to

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

the Offeror to clarify its proposal, respond to questions from the Authority, and substantiate representations in the proposal. No comments about other Offerors or other proposals will be permitted and Offerors shall not be permitted to attend presentations by other Offerors. Evaluations may be revised based upon information provided by the Offerors in the oral presentation.

At the conclusion of the informal interviews (if any), on the basis of evaluation factors published in the Request for Proposals and all information developed in the selection process to this point any firm deemed not to be in the competitive range shall be notified of such in writing by the Authority. The Authority shall negotiate with firms in the competitive range as detailed in Section 6.3. The Authority shall award the contract to the most qualified Offeror(s) whose Proposals will be most advantageous to the Authority and with whom the Authority is able to reach agreement in accordance with Section 6 hereof. In negotiations regarding the terms of the contract, the Authority has no legal authority to indemnify the Offeror. Firms submitting proposals agree that they will not ask the Authority to indemnify them in any resulting contract.

The Authority may: (a) reject any and all proposal packages received; (b) waive any minor irregularities or technicalities in the proposal packages received; (c) make a single or multiple awards under this RFP; (d) amend this solicitation as permitted by applicable law; or (e) cancel this solicitation in its entirety or any portion thereof.

- **9.2 Contract Award Procedure.** If a contract is awarded pursuant to this RFP, the following detailed procedures will be followed:
 - **9.2.1** By completing, executing and submitting the Proposal, the "Offeror is thereby agreeing to abide by all terms and conditions pertaining to this RFP as issued by the Authority including the contract clauses already attached. Accordingly, the Authority has no responsibility to conduct after the submittal deadline any negotiations pertaining to the contract clauses already published.
 - **9.2.2** Contract Conditions. The following provisions are considered mandatory conditions of any contract award made by the Authority pursuant to this RFP:
 - **9.2.2.1 Contract Form.** The Authority will not execute a contract on the Contractor's form—contracts will only be executed on the Authority form (please see Sample Contract), and by submitting a proposal the Contractor agrees to do so (please note that the Authority reserves the right to amend this form as the Authority deems necessary). However, the Authority will during the RFP process (prior to the submittal deadline) consider any

RFP 21002 CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

contract clauses that the Offeror wishes to include therein and submits in writing a request for the Authority to do so; but the failure of the Authority to include such clauses does not give the Contractor the right to refuse to execute the Authority's contract form. It is the responsibility of each prospective Offeror to notify the Authority, in writing, prior to submitting a proposal, of any contract clause that he/she is not willing to include in the final executed contract and abide by. The Authority will consider and respond to such written correspondence, and if the prospective contractor is not willing to abide by the Authority's response (decision), then that prospective contractor shall be deemed ineligible to submit a proposal.

- **9.2.2.2 HUD Forms.** Please note that the Authority has no legal right or ability to (and will not) at any time negotiate any clauses contained within ANY of the HUD forms included as a part of this RFP.
- **9.2.2.3 Assignment of Personnel.** The Authority shall retain the right to demand and receive a change in personnel assigned to the work if the Authority believes that such change is in the best interest of the Authority and the completion of the contracted work.
- **9.2.2.4 Unauthorized Sub-Contracting Prohibited.** The Contractor shall not assign any right, nor delegate any duty for the work proposed pursuant to this RFP (including, but not limited to, selling or transferring the contract) without the prior written consent of the CO. Any purported assignment of interest or delegation of duty, without the prior written consent of the CO shall be void and may result in the cancellation of the contract with the Authority, or may result in the full or partial forfeiture of funds paid to the Contractor as a result of the proposed contract; either as determined by the CO.

9.3 Contract Period

The Authority anticipates that it will initially award a contract for the period necessary for the completion of the Tasks outlined in the RFP.

9.4 Contract Type

This RFP will result in a contract with payment terms to be negotiated between the Authority and the selected Offeror. The contract shall commence on the date specified therein and will be in effect until completion of the Tasks outlined in the RFP.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

9.5 Start-up Costs

It is implicit that time spent reviewing Authority policies, procedures, files, or standard contracts in preparation to provide a Sustainability Study to the Authority shall not be invoiced to the Authority.

9.6 Confidentiality

- **9.6.1** During the term of this contract, as well as thereafter, all information pertaining to the Authority shall be kept confidential unless such information is open to the public under local, state, and/or federal law. Contractor shall not use any such information to the detriment of the Authority or its officers or employees at any time during or after the period of this contract.
- **9.6.2** Any inquiries from the media concerning the Authority or matters for which the Authority engages shall be communicated immediately to the Executive Director (ED). Contractor shall communicate with the Authority to develop an appropriate response, if one is warranted.

10. WITHDRAWAL/MISTAKES

- 10.1 Proposals may **NOT** be withdrawn for ninety (90) days from the submission deadline date.
- 10.2 If a mistake in a proposal is suspected or alleged; the proposal may be corrected or withdrawn during any negotiations that are held. If negotiations are not held, the Offeror may be permitted to correct a mistake in the proposal and the intended correct offer may be considered based on the conditions that follow:
 - **10.2.1** The mistake and the intended correct offer are clearly evident on the face of the proposal.
 - **10.2.2** The Offeror submits written evidence which clearly and convincingly demonstrates both the existing offer and such correction would not be contrary to the fair and equal treatment of other Offerors.

Mistakes after award shall not be corrected unless the Authority's Executive Director makes a written determination that it would be disadvantageous to the Authority not to allow the mistake to be corrected. The approval or disapproval of requests of this nature shall be in writing by the Authority's Executive Director.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Offeror warrants that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, he/she does not have any organizational conflict of interest. Conflict of interest is defined as a situation in which the nature of work under this contract and the Offeror's organizational, financial, contractual or other interests are such that:

- 11.1 Award of the contract may result in an unfair competitive advantage.
- 11.2 The Offeror's objectivity in performing the contract work may be impaired. In the event the Offeror has an organizational conflict of interest as defined herein, the Offeror shall disclose such conflict of interest fully in the proposal submission.
- 11.3 The Offeror agrees that if after award he or she discovers an organizational conflict of interest with respect to this contract, he or she shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the Executive Director which shall include a description of the action which the Offeror has taken or intends to take to eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The Authority may, however, terminate the contract if it is in its best interest.
- 11.4 In the event the Offeror was aware of an organizational conflict of interest before the award of this contract and intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the Executive Director, The Authority may terminate the contract for default.
- 11.5 The provisions of this clause shall be included in all subcontracts and consulting agreements wherein the work to be performed is similar to the service provided by the Offeror. The Offeror shall include in such subcontracts and consulting agreements any necessary provisions to eliminate or neutralize conflicts of interest.
- 11.6 No member, officer, or employee of the Authority or Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the Board of Commissioners and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.
- 11.7 In addition to complying with any applicable professional conduct standards relating to conflicts of interest, Contractor affirms and agrees that he/she has not represented any client in any matter pending against the Authority during the six month period preceding the resulting contract, and that he/she/the firm shall not represent any client in any capacity concerning any matter pending against the Authority during the existence of this contract, nor for a six month period following the end/termination of this contract.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

11.8 The Authority reserves total discretion to determine the proper treatment of any conflict of interest disclosed under this provision, which may include without limitation disqualification of the applicable Offeror.

12. PROTEST PROCEDURES

12.1 Protest of Procurement Action:

Who May File: Any actual or prospective Bidder/Offeror to a CRHA solicitation whose direct economic interest would be directly affected by the award of the contract, may protest a solicitation or a contract award only for alleged material violations of the principles of the CRHA Procurement Policy; HUD procurement regulations; and applicable Federal, State and local laws. The written protest shall include the basis for the protest and the relief sought. Solicitation documents shall set forth CRHA's protest rights.

Filing Deadline: A protest against a solicitation must be received from the prospective Bidder/Offeror before the due date for receipt of bids or proposals. A protest against the award of a contract or cancellation of a solicitation must be received within ten (10) calendar days after notice of contract award or announcement of the decision to award or notice of cancellation of a solicitation, whichever comes first. Any protest which is not made within the specified time limit will not be considered.

Filing Procedure: All protests shall be in writing, submitted to the Contracting Officer or designee. It must state the exact reason for the protest, attaching any supportive data. The protestant must state within the written protest document specifically (not by inference) what action by CRHA or condition is being protested as inequitable, making, where appropriate specific reference to the solicitation documents issued. The protest document must also state the corrective action requested. Failure by the alleged aggrieved protestant to fully submit such information shall relieve CRHA from any responsibility to consider the protest and take any corrective action.

Contracting Officer's Decision: The Contracting Officer shall conduct an investigation as appropriate, and shall issue a written decision on the matter after reviewing all relevant information, within ten (10) days. The Contracting Officer's decision shall inform the protester of any appeal rights within CRHA. An award need not be delayed for the period allowed a bidder or Offeror to protest, but in the event of a timely protest, no further action to award the contract will be taken unless there is a written determination that proceeding without delay is necessary to protect the public interest or unless the bid or offer would expire.

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

- 12.2 Contract Claims: All claims by a contractor relating to performance of a contract shall be submitted in writing to the Contracting Officer or designee. The Contracting Officer shall conduct an investigation as appropriate, and shall issue a written decision on the matter expeditiously after reviewing all relevant information. The contractor may request a conference on the claim. The Contracting Officer's decision shall inform the contractor of any appeal rights to the Executive Director
- **12.3 Appeal Rights:** A decision to award may be appealed through an Administrative Appeals procedure which shall provide for a:
 - **12.3.1** Hearing before a disinterested person or panel;
 - **12.3.2** Opportunity to present pertinent information;
 - 12.3.3 Issuance of a written decision containing findings of fact.

The disinterested person or panel shall not be an employee of the governmental entity against whom the claim has been filed. The findings of fact shall be final and conclusive and shall not be set aside unless the same are (a) fraudulent, arbitrary or capricious; (b) so grossly erroneous as to imply bad faith; or (c) in the case of denial of prequalification, the findings were not based upon the criteria for denial of prequalification set forth in subsection B of §2.2-4317 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act. No determination on an issue of law shall be final if appropriate legal action is instituted in a timely manner.

Any party to the administrative procedure, including the public body, shall be entitled to institute judicial review if such action is brought within thirty days of receipt of the written decision.

- **12.4 Deadline for Appeal:** All such appeals must be submitted by the contractor in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the Contracting Officer's decision.
- **12.5 Appeal to HUD:** HUD will only review protests in cases of violations of Federal law or regulations and failure of CRHA to review a complaint or protest.

RFP 21002

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SUSTAINABILITY STUDY

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Submittals:

Attachment 1 – Experience Form

Attachment 2 – Questionnaire

Attachment 3 – Minority and Women Business Participation Compliance Form

Attachment 4 – Section 3 Fact Sheet and Certification Forms

Attachment 5 – Price Proposal

Attachment 6 – Form HUD-5369 C, Representations, Certifications and Other Statements of Offerors

Attachment 7 – Authorization for Verification of References

Attachment 8 – Statement of Offeror's Qualifications (If information previously provided, please indicate Tab and Attachment number on form)

Attachment 9 - Conflict of Interest Statement

Attachment 10 - W-9 Form

Attachment 11 - Non-Collusive Affidavit

Informational:

Attachment 12 - Form HUD 5369-B Instructions to Offerors

Attachment 13 – Form HUD 5370-C1 General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts

Attachment 14 – Sample Contract

ATTACHMENT 1

Please complete a form for each organization that you have provided a Sustainability Study for in the last five (5) years similar to CRHA. (List no more than 10 organizations)

Experience Form

Organization Name:
Address:
Organization Size (# Employees):
Type of Organization: Public Private
Organization Description:
Contact Name:
Address:
Phone Number:
E-mail Address:
Contract Term (if renewable, has it been renewed?):
Type of Study Provided to Organization:

ATTACHMENT 2 - QUESTIONNAIRE

If you answer yes to any of the following, on a separate attachment, provide a detailed explanation regarding the circumstances relating to same, including the names, addresses and phone numbers of persons who might be contacted for additional information.

1.	Has your organization, any principal of your organization, or any "Affiliated Entity" (i.e. an entity of which your organization or one or more principals of your organization serves or served as general partner, managing member, or manager, or an entity in which your organization or the principal[s] of your organization (individually or collectively) have or had a greater than 50% interest):
	a. ever been terminated on a contract for cause? Yes No
	b. within the last five years, made payment on a contract for damages? Yes No
2.	Has your organization, any principal of your organization, or any Affiliated Entity, in the last three years, received a final order for willful and/or repeated violation(s) issued by any government agency? Yes No
3.	In the last ten years, has your organization, any principal of your organization, or any Affiliated Entity, had any judgment entered against it or them for any claim sounding in breach of contract, tortious interference with contract or a contract expectancy, discrimination, or fraud?
	Yes No
	If yes, please on a separate attachment, state the person or entity against whom the judgment was entered, give the location and date of the judgment, describe the project involved, and explain the circumstances relating to the judgment, including the names, addresses and phone numbers of persons who might be contacted for additional information.
5.	If you answer yes to any of the following, please on a separate attachment, state the person or entity against whom the conviction or debarment was entered, give the location and date of the conviction or debarment, describe the project involved, and explain the circumstances relating to the conviction or debarment, including the names, addresses and phone numbers of persons who might be contacted for additional information.
	In the last ten years, has your organization or any officer, director, partner, owner, project manager, procurement manager or chief financial officer of your organization:
	a. ever been found guilty on charges relating to conflict of interest?

ATTACHMENT 2 - QUESTIONNAIRE

	Yes No
	b. ever been convicted on criminal charges relating to contracting or bribery?
	Yes No
	c. ever been convicted: (i) under Va. Code Section 2.2-4367 et seq. (Ethics in Public Contracting); (ii) under Va. Code Section 18.2-498.1 et seq. (Va Governmental Frauds Act); (iii) under Va. Code Section 59.1-68.6 et seq (Conspiracy to Rig Bids); (iv) of a criminal violation of Va. Code Section 40.1-49.4 (enforcement of occupational safety and health standards); or (v) or violating any substantially similar federal law or law of another state?
	Yes No
6.	Is your organization or any officer, director, partner or owner currently debarred from doing federal, state or local government work for any reason?
	Yes No
7.	Is your organization or any officer, director, partner or owner currently censured by HUE Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) from doing work for any reason?
	Yes No

ATTACHMENT 6

MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION COMMITMENT FORM

It is the policy of Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority to ensure that Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Women-owned Businesses (WBEs) are provided the maximum opportunity to participate in all contracts administered by CRHA. This requirement applies to all businesses performing as the prime contractor.

For the purpose of this commitment, a MBE is defined as "any legal entity other than a joint venture, organized to engage in commercial transactions, that is at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by one or more minority group members or, in the case of a publicly-owned business, at least fifty-one (51) percent of the stock is minority owned and controlled by minority group members. For the purpose of this commitment, "minority group members" are defined as citizens of the United States who are members of a socially or economically disadvantaged minority group, which includes African-Americans, Hispanic-Americans, Asian-Americans, Native-Americans and Pacific Islanders.

For the purpose of this commitment, a WBE is defined as a "business that is at least fifty-one (51) percent owned by a woman or women, who are U.S. citizens and who control or operate the business.

CRHA has not established a minimum threshold for participation of MBEs and WBEs; however, CRHA strongly encourages and affirmatively promotes the use of MBEs and WBEs in all CRHA contracts.

Please indicate the percentage of minority business participation for this project. This refers to the percentage of the total dollar value of the contract that will be subcontracted to minority firms. If a certified minority firm, indicate 100 percent. A copy of certification should be included.

percent*					
Please indicate the percentage of women-owned business participation for this project. This refers to the percentage of the total dollar value of the contract that will be subcontracted to women-owned firms. If a certified women-owned firm, indicate 100 percent. A copy of certification should be included.					
percent*					

*CRHA will consider minority and women-owned participation in awarding this contract. And, as on all CRHA projects, CRHA reserves the right to approve or disapprove any subcontractor list.

ATTACHMENT 6

To be considered a "minority business", the business must be so certified by the Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity of the Commonwealth of Virginia or Federal government. CRHA will provide assistance in the certification process.

The undersigned hereby certifies that he or she has read the terms of this commitment and is authorized to bind the Responder to the commitment herein set forth.								
Responder's Name	Name of Authorized Officer – printed							
Date	Name of Authorized Officer – signed							

Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority Section 3 Business Self-Certification

,	ies, deposes and says, under pe			ea being auly	sworn, on oa	itn, represents, warrants,
L.	Company Name:	•				
<u>.</u>	Company Address:					Zip
١.	Business Telephone:					
	Fax:					
l.	Type of Business (examples					
i.	Contractor's Licenses	Class A		Class B		Class C
	Contractor's License:					Class C
		SWaM	<u></u>			
	e select "Yes" or "No". If you a pany as a Section 3 Business En		or more of the fo	ollowing ques	tions, you m	ay designate your
	51% or more of the busines	s is owned by a Sectio	on 3 resident: or			
		YES	•	NO		
	30% or more of the compan three years; or	ıy's full-time employe	es are Section 3 r	esidents, or v	were Section	3 residents within the pas
	, ,	YES		NO		
	The company can provide e			t to subcontra	act 25% or m	ore of all subcontract
	dollars to a certified and qu		ness enterprises.			
		YES	OPTIONAL	NO		
	nority-owned Business Enterpr owned is controlled by minorit African-American	y group member(s). I		eral minority		
	Asian-Indian American Asian	Pacific	c American	t	Hasidic Jewis	h American
	Woman Owned <u>A Woman-ov</u> who are United States citizen			=	ast <i>51% own</i>	ed by a woman or women
est of ertific	re and affirm under penalty of f my knowledge. I understand cation. hture of Business Owner or Autl	that falsifying inform	ation and incom		ents may be	
Signa	ture of Business Owner or Aut	horized Representativ	ve		Da	te
		•				
Nota	ry Public Jurist: City/County of			in the Co	ommonweal	th of Virginia
he f	oregoing instrument was subsc	ribed and sworn before	re me this	day c	of	, 201by:
lota	ry (Please Print Name)		Not	ary Signature		_
Γhis α	commission expires:		Not	arv Registrati	on Number:	

Section 3 Business Enterprise Fact Sheet

Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Act of 1968 that promotes local economic development, neighborhood economic improvement, and individual self-sufficiency. The Section 3 program requires that recipients of certain HUD financial assistance, to the greatest extent possible, provide job training, employment, and contract opportunities for low or very-low income residents in connection with projects and activities in their neighborhoods.

Housing Authorities are mandated by HUD to provide employment, training and contracting opportunities to low income and very-low income persons, specifically those individuals who are recipients of government assistance for housing.

Please Note:

Section 3 Certification does not in any way serve as a guarantee that the business will be selected or awarded any contract or business opportunity.

Are you a Section 3 Business Enterprise?

A Section 3 Business Enterprise is:

- A business that is at least 51% or more owned by Section 3 Residents,
- A business whose 30% of permanent, full-time employees are Section 3 residents or were Section 3 residents.
- A business that will commit to subcontract 25% or more of all PRHA contract dollar awards to Section 3 businesses.

A Section 3 Resident is:

- A public housing resident or,
- A low income person who lives in the metropolitan areas where a HUD-assisted project for housing or community development is located. Low income is defined as income below 80% of the median household income of that area. The median household income for this Metropolitan Statistical Area is \$89,400.

The Section 3 Resident Certification is available for you to survey your current and prospective employees to determine if a person is Section 3 resident. You must consider the family's annual household income and the number of persons in the household. The chart below will help you to identify a person as a Section 3 Resident. Find the family size on the chart. If the family's annual income is equal to or less than the income listed below in the box, that person is a Section 3 resident.

Family Size	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Household Income	\$50,050	\$57,200	\$64,350	\$71,500	\$77,250	\$82,950	\$88,700	\$94,400

How can businesses find Section 3 Residents?

Contact Ms. Joy Johnson at *joyskijohnson@gmail.com* or XXXX to provide your company's employment and training opportunities and any special knowledge, skills, abilities and/or requirements. CRHA will search its database and refer Section 3 residents as candidates for your interview and consideration.

Examples of Section 3 jobs may include, but are not limited to:

- Administrative/Management (accounting, payroll, research, bookkeeping, purchasing, word processing);
- Service (repair, florists, marketing, carpet installation, janitorial, catering, landscaping, printing, computer services, transportation);
- Construction (architecture, bricklaying, carpentry, cement/masonry, demolition, drywall, electrical, elevator construction, engineering, fencing, heating, iron works, machine and equipment operator, painting, plastering, plumbing, tile setting, unskilled labor, semi- skilled trades).

CHARLOTTESVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

Section 3 Resident Self-Certification

This form will be used in support of Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority's (CRHA), Section 3 efforts for providing economic opportunities to low and moderate income persons, particularly persons receiving federal assistance for housing. Providing the requested information is strictly voluntary and highly confidential. The information you provide will help CRHA provide preference to persons that qualify under HUD regulations for a Section 3 residents.

Section 3 resident(s) must be:

I.

- A residents of public housing, or
- A low income person who lives in the metropolitan areas where a HUD-assisted project for housing or community development is located. Low income is defined as income below 80% of the median household income of that area.

. the undersigned being duly sworn, on oath, represent.

wa	rrant, certify	y, depose ar	nd say, unde	er penalty of	law that I an	n a Section 3	3 resident.	, ,	,
1.	My current address is (give street address, city, state, and zip code)								
I do do not reside in public housing. If you do, please give the name of y housing community								ame of your	public
3. I do do not receive assistance from a Housing Choice or Project-Based Vouc (Section 8). If you do, please give the name of the agency that issued you the Housing Choice Voucher or the name of your Project-Based Voucher community.									
If you are <u>not</u> a public housing, Project-Based Voucher or Housing Choice Voucher resident, the chart below will help you to identify whether you are a Section 3 resident. Find your family size on the chart. If your family's annual income is equal to or less than the income listed below that box, you are a Section 3 resident.									
mily	Size	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
nua	Income	\$50,050	\$57,200	\$64,350	\$71,500	\$77,250	\$82,950	\$88,700	\$94,40
4. There are total number of individuals in my family and my household income is equal to or less than \$ (refer to chart above). I understand that the information above relating to the size and annual income of my family may require verification. Upon request, I agree to provide documents verifying this information. I also authorize my employer to release this information for the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, the Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority and the prime and/or sub-contractors to verify my status as a "Section 3 Resident". Title 18, Section 1001 of the U.S. Code states that a person is guilty of a felony for knowingly and willingly making false or fraudulent statements to any department of the United States Government. Willful falsification of any of the above statements may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution. See Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the U.S. Code.									
Sig	nature						Date		

ATTACHMENT 5 - PRICE PROPOSAL

The Offeror proposes the fee arrangement described below for the services listed in this RFP. The Offeror will indicate whether the rates represent a discount from standard rates.

		PRIC TOTAL	ING - EACH TA	ASK	
Task 1 - Evaluate current physical condition		TOTAL			
Task 2 - Analyze past, current and future markets					
Task 3 - Research Best Practices					
Γask 4 - Develop a roadmap/mini stategic plan					
Task 5 - Develop conceptual designs					
Task 6 - Recommend redevelopment stategy					
Γask 7 - Final deliverables and presentation					
Total Tasks					
EXPENSES			NG - ACTUAL C	COST	
Total proposed fee for all expenses to complete the work to include:		TOTAL			
Travel and Lodging					
Per Diem					
SERVICES	NOTES	PRIC	CING - FIXED F	EE	
CRHA will reimburse for reasonable telephone, fax, copying, overn	: - b. 4 . d . d . d	charges, etc. as a senarate reimbursable expense.			
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this	ight denvery, postage RFP.	•			
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Use Additional Sheets As Necessary	gnt denvery, postage RFP.	•			
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Jse Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name:	gmt denvery, postage		DUNS Number		
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Use Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID:	gnt denvery, postage		DUNS Number:		
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Use Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address:	igit denvery, postage		DUNS Number:		
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Jose Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address: City/State/Zip:	gm uenvery, postage			-	
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Jose Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address: City/State/Zip: Telephone:	gm uchvery, postage		DUNS Number:	-	
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Jse Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address: City/State/Zip: Felephone:	gm uenvery, postage			-	
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Use Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address: City/State/Zip: Telephone: E-Mail:	gm uenvery, postage			- -	
Describe the rate structure for additional hours not defined by this Use Additional Sheets As Necessary Company Name: Federal Tax ID: Address: City/State/Zip: Telephone: E-Mail: Print Name:	gm denvery, postage		Fax Number:	- Date:	

Certifications and Representations of Offerors

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Non-Construction Contract

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 5 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

This form includes clauses required by OMB's common rule on bidding/offering procedures, implemented by HUD in 24 CFR 85.36, and those requirements set forth in Executive Order 11625 for small, minority, women-owned businesses, and certifications for independent price determination, and conflict of interest. The form is required for nonconstruction contracts awarded by Housing Agencies (HAs). The form is used by bidders/offerors to certify to the HA's Contracting Officer for contract compliance. If the form were not used, HAs would be unable to enforce their contracts. Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

1. Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement

- (a) The bidder/offeror represents and certifies as part of its bid/ offer that, except for full-time bona fide employees working solely for the bidder/offeror, the bidder/offeror:
 - (1) [] has, [] has not employed or retained any person or company to solicit or obtain this contract; and
 - (2) [] has, [] has not paid or agreed to pay to any person or company employed or retained to solicit or obtain this contract any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other fee contingent upon or resulting from the award of this contract.
- (b) If the answer to either (a)(1) or (a) (2) above is affirmative, the bidder/offeror shall make an immediate and full written disclosure to the PHA Contracting Officer.
- (c) Any misrepresentation by the bidder/offeror shall give the PHA the right to (1) terminate the resultant contract; (2) at its discretion, to deduct from contract payments the amount of any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other contingent fee; or (3) take other remedy pursuant to the contract.

2. Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Representation

The bidder/offeror represents and certifies as part of its bid/ offer that it:

- (a) [] is, [] is not a small business concern. "Small business concern," as used in this provision, means a concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding, and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size standards in 13 CFR 121.
- (b) [] is, [] is not a women-owned small business concern. "Women-owned," as used in this provision, means a small business that is at least 51 percent owned by a woman or women who are U.S. citizens and who also control and operate the business.
- (c) [] is, [] is not a minority enterprise which, pursuant to Executive Order 11625, is defined as a business which is at least 51 percent owned by one or more minority group members or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of its voting stock is owned by one or more minority group members, and whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more such individuals.

For the purpose of this definit	ion, minority	group	members	are:
(Check the block applicable to	you)			

[] Black Americans	[] Asian Pacific Americans
[] Hispanic Americans	[] Asian Indian Americans
[] Native Americans	[] Hasidic Jewish Americans

3. Certificate of Independent Price Determination

- (a) The bidder/offeror certifies that—
 - (1) The prices in this bid/offer have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other bidder/offeror or competitor relating to (i) those prices, (ii) the intention to submit a bid/offer, or (iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered;
 - (2) The prices in this bid/offer have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by the bidder/offeror, directly or indirectly, to any other bidder/offeror or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a negotiated solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
 - (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder/ offeror to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit a bid/offer for the purpose of restricting competition.
- (b) Each signature on the bid/offer is considered to be a certification by the signatory that the signatory:
 - (1) Is the person in the bidder/offeror's organization responsible for determining the prices being offered in this bid or proposal, and that the signatory has not participated and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through (a)(3) above; or
 - (2) (i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the following principals in certifying that those principals have not participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through (a)(3) above (insert full name of person(s) in the bidder/offeror's organization responsible for determining the prices offered in this bid or proposal, and the title of his or her position in the bidder/offeror's organization);
 - (ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the principals named in subdivision (b)(2)(i) above have not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and

- (iii) As an agent, has not personally participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above.
- (c) If the bidder/offeror deletes or modifies subparagraph (a)2 above, the bidder/offeror must furnish with its bid/offer a signed statement setting forth in detail the circumstances of the disclosure.

4. Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification

- (a) The Contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work under a proposed contract and a prospective contractor's organizational, financial, contractual or other interest are such that:
 - (i) Award of the contract may result in an unfair competitive advantage;
 - (ii) The Contractor's objectivity in performing the contract work may be impaired; or
 - (iii) That the Contractor has disclosed all relevant information and requested the HA to make a determination with respect to this Contract.
- (b) The Contractor agrees that if after award he or she discovers an organizational conflict of interest with respect to this contract, he or she shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the HA which shall include a description of the action which the Contractor has taken or intends to eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The HA may, however, terminate the Contract for the convenience of HA if it would be in the best interest of HA.
- (c) In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest before the award of this Contract and intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the HA, the HA may terminate the Contract for default.
- (d) The Contractor shall require a disclosure or representation from subcontractors and consultants who may be in a position to influence the advice or assistance rendered to the HA and shall include any necessary provisions to eliminate or neutralize conflicts of interest in consultant agreements or subcontracts involving performance or work under this Contract.

5. Authorized Negotiators (RFPs only)

The offeror represents that the following persons are authorized to negotiate on its behalf with the PHA in connection with this request for proposals: (list names, titles, and telephone numbers of the authorized negotiators):

6. Conflict of Interest

In the absence of any actual or apparent conflict, the offeror, by submission of a proposal, hereby warrants that to the best of its knowledge and belief, no actual or apparent conflict of interest exists with regard to my possible performance of this procurement, as described in the clause in this solicitation titled "Organizational Conflict of Interest."

7. Offeror's Signature

The offeror hereby certifies that the information contained in these certifications and representations is accurate, complete, and current.

Signature & Date:	
Typed or Printed Name:	
Title:	

ATTACHMENT 9 - <u>AUTHORIZATION FOR VERIFICATION OF REFERENCES</u>

The undersigned Offeror has submitted a proposal to the Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (CRHA) in response to the RFP. The undersigned hereby authorizes and requests any and all persons, firms, corporations, and/or government entities to furnish any information requested by CRHA in verification of the references provided, for determination of the quality and timeliness of the services provided by Offeror, and all other legal purposes. A copy of this document, after execution by the Offeror, presented by CRHA to any such person, firm, corporation and/or government entity shall be as valid as the original.

Printed Name and Address of Offeror	
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Representative or Official of	Offeror
Signature of Authorized Representative or Official of Offeror	Date

ATTACHMENT 8

STATEMENT OF OFFEROR'S QUALIFICATIONS

All questions must be answered and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. This statement must be notarized. If necessary, questions may be answered on separate sheets. The Proposer may submit any additional information desired.

1.	Name of firm
2.	Business address
3.	When organized
4.	Where incorporated
5.	How many years have you engaged in the contracting business under your present firm or trading name?
6.	Will you, upon request, fill out a detailed financial statement and provide this to CRHA?
7.	Contracts now on hand, gross amount \$
8.	Experience and qualification of personnel to be assigned to this project. (Attach separate sheet under Tab 1)
9.	Have you ever refused to sign a contract at your original proposal price? Yes No If yes, please attach reason.
10.	Have you ever defaulted on a contract? Yes No If yes, please attach reason.
11.	List of contracts. Attach a separate sheet listing the following information on similar contracts received within the past five years. It is not required to list more than ten (10) contracts: Organization name, location, address, dollar value, brief description of contract, and date completed. (This information should be provided on your completed Attachment 1 – Experience forms under Tab 2.)
12.	The undersigned hereby authorizes and requests any person to furnish any information requested by the CRHA in verification of the recitals comprising this Statement of Proposer's Qualifications.

ATTACHMENT 8

13.	List your major equipment available for this Contract. Attach a separate sheet.				
14.	Phone Number:	Fax Number:			
15.	Contact E-Mail Address:				
16.	Company's Website:				
17.	Are you a Section 3 Certified Business? Yes	No			
Signa	nture of Principal/Owner				
Printe	ed Name				
Title					
Date					

CRHA CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

The terms "Contractor" or "Offeror" or "Bidder" shall have the same meaning, and shall refer to the selected firm(s) under the bid or proposal.

PART I. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 1. Neither the Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (CRHA) nor any of its subcontractors or their subcontractors may enter into any contract or arrangement in connection with a project in which any of the following classes of people has an interest, direct or indirect, during his or her tenure or for one year thereafter:
 - a. Any present or former member or officer of the governing body of CRHA or any member of the immediate family of such member or officer. There shall be excepted from this prohibition any present or former tenant commissioner who does not serve on the governing body of a resident corporation, and who otherwise does not occupy a policymaking position with the resident corporation, CRHA or a business entity.
 - b. Any employee of CRHA who formulates policy or who influences decisions with respect to the project(s), or any member of the employee's immediate family, or the employee's partner.
 - c. Any public official, member of the local governing body, or State or local legislator, or any member of such individual's immediate family, who exercises functions or responsibilities with respect to the project(s) or CRHA.
- 2. Any member of these classes of persons must disclose the member's interest or prospective interest to CRHA and the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
- 3. Any bidder/offeror who submits a proposal or bid in response to a CRHA solicitation must disclose in its proposal or bid, the interest, direct or indirect, of any member of these classes of persons in such bidder/offeror, and shall also make the disclosures required in Parts II and III below. "Offeror" as used in Parts II and III below, refers to bidders in sealed bidding, and offerors/responders in competitive proposals, and "offer" shall refer to bids and proposals.
- 4. For purposes of this section, the term, "immediate family member" means the spouse or domestic partner, mother, father, brother, sister, or child of a covered class member (whether related as a full blood relative, or as a "half or "step" relative, e.g. a half-brother or stepchild).
- 5. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America or any representative of CRHA shall be admitted to any share or part of any contract or to any benefits which may arise from it.

PART II. ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION

- 1. It is CRHA's policy to avoid situations which place an offeror in a position where its judgment may be biased if awarded the contract because of any past, present, or currently planned interest, financial or otherwise, that the offeror may have which relates to the work to be performed pursuant to the proposed contract or where the Offeror receives an unfair competitive advantage in submitting a proposal or bid for the proposed contract, such as, for example, an offeror who submits a proposal or bid after acting as a consultant to CRHA in preparing the specifications or performing a study for the proposed contract. Such situations which may either impair the offeror's objectivity in performing the proposed contract work or result in an unfair competitive advantage to the offeror are considered organizational conflicts of interest.
- 2. Where an offeror is aware of, or has reason to be aware of an organizational conflict of interest, whether an actual or apparent conflict, the offeror shall provide a statement which describes in a concise manner all relevant facts concerning any past, present, or currently planned interest, financial, contractual, organizational, or otherwise, relating to the work to be performed hereunder and bearing on whether the offeror has a possible organizational conflict of interest with respect to:
 - a. being able to render impartial, technical sound, and objective assistance or advice, or
 - b. being given an unfair competitive advantage.
 - 2.1. During the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation, the contractor and all principals and partners of any joint venture awarded a contract under this solicitation (collectively referred to herein as the "Contractor"), shall be prohibited from providing services for or on behalf of any person, firm or company, which is in a position that is adverse to the interests of CRHA. A position adverse to the interests of CRHA shall include, but not be limited to, a person, firm or company that has a claim for damages against CRHA in any judicial or administrative tribunal. Further, the contractor shall not engage any subcontractor for the performance of any services under the proposed contract if such subcontractor has, at any time within the twelve (12) consecutive month period preceding the commencement of its engagement with the contractor under the proposed contract, provided any services for or on behalf of any person, firm or company, which is in a position that is adverse to the interests of CRHA. The contractor shall insert and enforce a similar provision in its contract documents with each subcontractor. From time to time, during the term of the proposed contract CRHA may require (a) the contractor to submit a certification and affidavit as to the contractor's compliance with the terms of this subsection 2.1; and (b) the contractor to submit to CRHA a certification and affidavit from any or all subcontractors as to their compliance with such substantially similar provision as shall be enforced by the contractor. The contractor shall immediately terminate any subcontractor in violation of the terms of this subsection 2.1. Failure of the contractor to comply with the requirements of this subsection 2.1., or to terminate immediately any subcontractor in violation of such provision, shall constitute a default under the proposed contract and grounds for termination of the contract for cause, without liability to CRHA.
- 3. The Offeror may also provide relevant facts that show how its organizational structure and/or management systems limit its knowledge of possible organizational conflicts of interest relating to other divisions of the organization and how that structure or system would avoid or mitigate such organizational conflict.

ATTACHMENT 10

- 4. In the absence of any relevant interests referred to above, or any conflict of interest, financial, organizational, contractual or otherwise, offerors shall complete the certification in Part III below, titled Conflict of Interest Certification of Offeror.
- 5. No award shall be made until the disclosure or certification has been evaluated by the Contracting Officer. Failure to provide the disclosure or certification will be deemed to be a minor infraction and the offeror will be permitted to correct the omission within a time frame established by the Contracting Officer.
- 6. Refusal to provide the disclosure or certification and any additional information as required, or the willful nondisclosure or misrepresentation of any relevant information shall disqualify the offeror.
- 7. If the Contracting Officer determines that a potential conflict exists, the selected offeror shall not receive an award unless the conflict can be avoided or otherwise resolved as determined by the Contracting Officer.
- 8. In the event the Offeror is aware of an organizational conflict of interest and intentionally does not disclose the existence of such conflict to the Contracting Officer before the award of this contract, CRHA may terminate the contract for default.
- 9. The term "Affiliated Entities" shall include any parent, subsidiary, partner and/or joint venturer of or with the Offeror and any person or entity that shares in the profits of the Offeror or in the proceeds or profits resulting from the proposed contract. The Offeror shall not contract with any Affiliated Entity without obtaining CRHA's written approval of such contract. The Offeror shall disclose to CRHA all contracts that it has with any Affiliated Entities to provide goods, materials, equipment, supplies or services, of any nature or kind, with respect to the proposed contract.

PART III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST CERTIFICATION OF OFFEROR

- 1. The Offeror certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, no member of the classes of persons listed in Part I above has an interest or prospective interest, direct or indirect, financial, contractual, organizational or otherwise, in the Offeror.
- 2. The Offeror certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not have any actual or apparent organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work to be performed under This proposed contract and the Offeror's organizational, financial, contractual or other interests may:
 - (a) Result in an unfair competitive advantage to the Offeror; or
 - (b) Impair the Offeror's objectivity in performing the contract work.

ATTACHMENT 10

- 3. The Offeror agrees that if the contract is awarded to the Offeror, and after award it discovers an actual or apparent conflict of interest, financial, contractual, organizational or otherwise, with respect to this contract, it shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the Contracting Officer which shall include a description of the action which the Offeror has taken or intends to take to eliminate or resolve the conflict. CRHA may, however, terminate the contract for the convenience of HUD and/or CRHA.
- 4. The Offeror agrees that if the contract is awarded to the Offeror, the terms of this conflict of interest clause and any necessary provisions to eliminate conflicts of interest shall be included in all subcontracts and consulting agreements resulting from the proposed contract.
- 5. In the absence of any interest in the Offeror held by any member of the classes of persons referred to above and in the absence of any actual or apparent conflict, I, hereby certify and affirm under penalties of perjury, that to the best of my knowledge and belief, no actual or apparent conflict of interest exists with regard to my possible performance of the proposed contract. The undersigned official certifies that he/she is authorized to sign this proposal form for the firm.

Printed Name and Title Of Authorized Official or Responder	Date
Signature of Authorized Official or Responder	Date



Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

Internal	neverlue Service				
	Name (as shown on your income tax return)				
Print or type See Specific Instructions on page 2.	Business name/dis	regarded entity name, if different from above			
	Check appropriate box for federal tax classification: Individual/sole proprietor				
Print or type c Instructions	Other (see ins	ty company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) ►			
P		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ster's name and address	(optional)	
See Spe	City, state, and ZIP	2 code			
	List account number	er(s) here (optional)			
Par	Taxpa	yer Identification Number (TIN)			
Enter	your TIN in the ap	propriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the "Name" line	Social security numb	er	
reside entitie	nt alien, sole prop s, it is your emplo	Iding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a prietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other yer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see <i>How to get a</i>	-	-	
	page 3.	A Constitution of the state of	Employer identification	on number	
Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose number to enter. Employer identification number to enter.					
Part	II Certifi	cation			
Under	penalties of perju	ıry, I certify that:			
1. The	1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and				
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and					
3. I ar	n a U.S. citizen or	other U.S. person (defined below).			
becau interes genera instruc	se you have failed at paid, acquisition	ons. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you do to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions on abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you	, item 2 does not app dividual retirement arr	y. For mortgage angement (IRA), and	
Sign Here	Signature of U.S. person				

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Purpose of Form

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to you, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to:

- 1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),
 - 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or
- 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income.

Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

- An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,
- A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States,
- An estate (other than a foreign estate), or
- A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners' share of income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, a partnership is required to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid withholding on your share of partnership income.

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2011) Page **2**

The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States is in the following cases:

- The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity,
- The U.S. grantor or other owner of a grantor trust and not the trust, and
- The U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause." Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

- 1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.
 - 2. The treaty article addressing the income.
- 3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.
- 4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.
- 5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity not subject to backup withholding, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8.

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS a percentage of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

- 1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,
- 2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),
 - 3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,
- 4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or
- 5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See the instructions below and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9.

Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 1.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account, for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Name

If you are an individual, you must generally enter the name shown on your income tax return. However, if you have changed your last name, for instance, due to marriage without informing the Social Security Administration of the name change, enter your first name, the last name shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

If the account is in joint names, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of the form.

Sole proprietor. Enter your individual name as shown on your income tax return on the "Name" line. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as (DBA)" name on the "Business name/disregarded entity name" line.

Partnership, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name on the "Name" line and any business, trade, or "doing business as (DBA) name" on the "Business name/disregarded entity name" line.

Disregarded entity. Enter the owner's name on the "Name" line. The name of the entity entered on the "Name" line should never be a disregarded entity. The name on the "Name" line must be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income will be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a domestic owner, the domestic owner's name is required to be provided on the "Name" line. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on the "Business name/disregarded entity name" line. If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, you must complete an appropriate Form W-8.

Note. Check the appropriate box for the federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on the "Name" line (Individual/sole proprietor, Partnership, C Corporation, S Corporation, Trust/estate).

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the person identified on the "Name" line is an LLC, check the "Limited liability company" box only and enter the appropriate code for the tax classification in the space provided. If you are an LLC that is treated as a partnership for federal tax purposes, enter "P" for partnership. If you are an LLC that has filed a Form 8832 or a Form 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation. If you are an LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner under Regulation section 301.7701-3 (except for employment and excise tax), do not check the LLC box unless the owner of the LLC (required to be identified on the "Name" line) is another LLC that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. If the LLC is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner, enter the appropriate tax classification of the owner identified on the "Name" line.

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2011) Page **3**

Other entities. Enter your business name as shown on required federal tax documents on the "Name" line. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on the "Business name/ disregarded entity name" line.

Exempt Payee

If you are exempt from backup withholding, enter your name as described above and check the appropriate box for your status, then check the "Exempt payee" box in the line following the "Business name/disregarded entity name," sign and date the form.

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding. Corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, such as interest and dividends.

Note. If you are exempt from backup withholding, you should still complete this form to avoid possible erroneous backup withholding.

The following payees are exempt from backup withholding:

- 1. An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2),
 - 2. The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities,
- 3. A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of the United States, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities,
- 4. A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities, or
- 5. An international organization or any of its agencies or instrumentalities.

Other payees that may be exempt from backup withholding include:

- 6. A corporation,
- 7. A foreign central bank of issue,
- 8. A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a possession of the United States
- 9. A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
 - 10. A real estate investment trust,
- 11. An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
 - 12. A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a),
 - 13. A financial institution.
- 14. A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian, or
- 15. A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 15.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 9
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 5 and 7 through 13. Also, C corporations.
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 5
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 1	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 7 ²

¹See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see *How to get a TIN* below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see *Limited Liability Company (LLC)* on page 2), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local Social Security Administration office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded domestic entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if item 1, below, and items 4 and 5 on page 4 indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on the "Name" line must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt Payee on page 3.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 3, below, and items 4 and 5 on page 4.

- 1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.
- 2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.
- **3. Real estate transactions.** You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

² However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney, and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2011) Page **4**

- **4. Other payments.** You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).
- 5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
Individual Two or more individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account '
Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)	The minor ²
a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee) b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law	The grantor-trustee ¹ The actual owner ¹
Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual	The owner ³
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulation section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(A))	The grantor*
For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:
Disregarded entity not owned by an individual	The owner
A valid trust, estate, or pension trust Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	Legal entity ⁴ The corporation
Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax-exempt organization	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC12. A broker or registered nominee	The partnership The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulation section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(B))	The trust

¹ List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, social security number (SSN), or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- · Protect your SSN,
- Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes.

Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: *spam@uce.gov* or contact them at *www.ftc.gov/idtheft* or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

² Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

³ You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or "DBA" name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.

⁴List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see *Special rules for partnerships* on page 1.

^{*}Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

ATTACHMENT 5 - FORM OF NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

AFFIDAVIT (Prime Bidder)

State of)ss.	
State of County of		
		haina finat duly ayyama
deposes and says:		, being first duly sworn
That		he
or bid, that such proposed Bidder has not colluded with any Bidder or person not in any manner, dire communication or confer any other Bidder, or to fit that of any other Bidder Redevelopment and Hou	the firm of, etc.) the party make all or bid is genuine and not coll, conspired, connived or agran, to put in a sham bid or to re- ctly or indirectly, sought by tence, with any person, to fix to any overhead, profit or cost cost, or to secure any advantage asing Authority or any person tements in said proposal or bid	collusive or sham; that said reed, directly or indirectly, frain from bidding, and has agreement or collusion, or the bid price of affiant or of element of said price, or of against the Charlottesville interested in the proposed
	Ву	
	Title	
	(Affix Corporate Seal if a	required)
Subscribed and sworn to this day of		
My commission expires		
(Notary Seal Required)	·	

ATTACHMENT 5 - FORM OF NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

$\frac{A F F I D A V I T}{\text{(Subbidder)}}$

	State of)ss.				
	County of _)				
says:					, being	g first duly sw	orn deposes a
says.							
	That						.1
18 makin	o a certain	proposal (or bid dated				the par
maxim	6 u cortain	ргорозиг		·	for sul	ocontract work	in connection
with		the	constru	iction		of	HUD-aide
Virgin	ia and the na	erty proposed	by said		,	located in	Charlottesvill
		as	subcontractor	for said v	work as a	result of said b	pid, that such bired, connived
s geni	uine and not	collusive or	sham; that said	d Bidder	has not co	olluded, conspi	ired, connived
							or to refrain fro
							t or collusion,
							t or of any oth
Bidder	r, or to fix an	y overhead, p	profit or cost el	lement of	said price	e, or of that of a	any other Bidde
or to s	ecure any ad	vantage agaii	nst the Charlo	ttesville F	Redevelop	ment and Hous	sing Authority
any pe	erson intereste	ed in the prop	osed contract	; and that	all staten	nents in said pr	oposal or bid a
true.						-	-
			_				
			Ву				
			Title				
			(A CC		1 1 1 0	. 1)	
			(AIIIX Co	orporate S	Seal if requ	uirea)	
	Subscribed	and sworn to	before me				
	this	day of		, 20	_ ·		
	My commis	sion expires					
					•		
	(Notary Sea	1 Required)					

Instructions to Offerors Non-Construction

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Public and Indian Housing



-03291 -

1. Preparation of Offers

- (a) Offerors are expected to examine the statement of work, the proposed contract terms and conditions, and all instructions. Failure to do so will be at the offeror's risk.
- (b) Each offeror shall furnish the information required by the solicitation. The offeror shall sign the offer and print or type its name on the cover sheet and each continuation sheet on which it makes an entry. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the offer. Offers signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously furnished to the HA.
- (c) Offers for services other than those specified will not be considered.

2. Submission of Offers

- (a) Offers and modifications thereof shall be submitted in sealed envelopes or packages (1) addressed to the office specified in the solicitation, and (2) showing the time specified for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of the offeror.
- (b) Telegraphic offers will not be considered unless authorized by the solicitation; however, offers may be modified by written or telegraphic notice.
- (c) Facsimile offers, modifications or withdrawals will not be considered unless authorized by the solicitation.

3. Amendments to Solicitations

- (a) If this solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which are not modified remain unchanged.
- (b) Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of any amendments to this solicitation by
 - (1) signing and returning the amendment;
 - (2) identifying the amendment number and date in the space provided for this purpose on the form for submitting an offer,
 - (3) letter or telegram, or
 - (4) facsimile, if facsimile offers are authorized in the solicitation. The HA/HUD must receive the acknowledgment by the time specified for receipt of offers.

4. Explanation to Prospective Offerors

Any prospective offeror desiring an explanation or interpretation of the solicitation, statement of work, etc., must request it in writing soon enough to allow a reply to reach all prospective offerors before the submission of their offers. Oral explanations or instructions given before the award of the contract will not be binding. Any information given to a prospective offeror concerning a solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective offerors as an amendment of the solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting offers or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to any other prospective offerors.

5. Responsibility of Prospective Contractor

- (a) The HA shall award a contract only to a responsible prospective contractor who is able to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. To be determined responsible, a prospective contractor must -
 - (1) Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or the ability to obtain them;

- (2) Have a satisfactory performance record;
- (3) Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics:
- (4) Have a satisfactory record of compliance with public policy (e.g., Equal Employment Opportunity); and
- (5) Not have been suspended, debarred, or otherwise determined to be ineligible for award of contracts by the Department of Housing and Urban Development or any other agency of the U.S. Government. Current lists of ineligible contractors are available for inspection at the HA/HUD.
- (b) Before an offer is considered for award, the offeror may be requested by the HA to submit a statement or other documentation regarding any of the foregoing requirements. Failure by the offeror to provide such additional information may render the offeror ineligible for award.

6. Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Offers

- (a) Any offer received at the place designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered unless it is received before award is made and it -
 - (1) Was sent by registered or certified mail not later than the fifth calendar day before the date specified for receipt of offers (e.g., an offer submitted in response to a solicitation requiring receipt of offers by the 20th of the month must have been mailed by the 15th);
 - (2) Was sent by mail, or if authorized by the solicitation, was sent by telegram or via facsimile, and it is determined by the HA/ HUD that the late receipt was due solely to mishandling by the HA/HUD after receipt at the HA;
 - (3) Was sent by U.S. Postal Service Express Mail Next Day Service - Post Office to Addressee, not later than 5:00 p.m. at the place of mailing two working days prior to the date specified for receipt of proposals. The term "working days" excludes weekends and U.S. Federal holidays; or
 - (4) Is the only offer received.
- (b) Any modification of an offer, except a modification resulting from the HA's request for "best and final" offer (if this solicitation is a request for proposals), is subject to the same conditions as in subparagraphs (a)(1), (2), and (3) of this provision.
- (c) A modification resulting from the HA's request for "best and final" offer received after the time and date specified in the request will not be considered unless received before award and the late receipt is due solely to mishandling by the HA after receipt at the HA.
- (d) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent either by registered or certified mail is the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service postmark both on the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service. Both postmarks must show a legible date or the offer, modification, or withdrawal shall be processed as if mailed late. "Postmark" means a printed, stamped, or otherwise placed impression (exclusive of a postage meter machine impression) that is readily identifiable without further action as having been supplied and affixed by employees of the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service on the date of mailing. Therefore, offerors should request the postal clerk to place a hand cancellation bull's-eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (e) The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at the HA is the time/date stamp of HA on the offer wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by the HA.

- (f) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent by Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee is the date entered by the post office receiving clerk on the "Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee" label and the postmark on both the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. Postal Service. "Postmark" has the same meaning as defined in paragraph (c) of this provision, excluding postmarks of the Canadian Postal Service. Therefore, offerors should request the postal clerk to place a legible hand cancellation bull's eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (g) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this provision, a late modification of an otherwise successful offer that makes its terms more favorable to the HA will be considered at any time it is received and may be accepted.
- (h) If this solicitation is a request for proposals, proposals may be withdrawn by written notice, or if authorized by this solicitation, by telegram (including mailgram) or facsimile machine transmission received at any time before award. Proposals may be withdrawn in person by a offeror or its authorized representative if the identity of the person requesting withdrawal is established and the person signs a receipt for the offer before award. If this solicitation is an invitation for bids, bids may be withdrawn at any time prior to bid opening.

7. Contract Award

- (a) The HA will award a contract resulting from this solicitation to the responsible offeror whose offer conforming to the solicitation will be most advantageous to the HA, cost or price and other factors, specified elsewhere in this solicitation, considered.
- (b) The HA may
 - (1) reject any or all offers if such action is in the HA's interest,
 - (2) accept other than the lowest offer,
 - (3) waive informalities and minor irregularities in offers received, and (4) award more than one contract for all or part of the requirements stated.
- (c) If this solicitation is a request for proposals, the HA may award a contract on the basis of initial offers received, without discussions. Therefore, each initial offer should contain the offeror's best terms from a cost or price and technical standpoint.

- (d) A written award or acceptance of offer mailed or otherwise furnished to the successful offeror within the time for acceptance specified in the offer shall result in a binding contract without further action by either party. If this solicitation is a request for proposals, before the offer's specified expiration time, the HA may accept an offer, whether or not there are negotiations after its receipt, unless a written notice of withdrawal is received before award. Negotiations conducted after receipt of an offer do not constitute a rejection or counteroffer by the HA.
- (e) Neither financial data submitted with an offer, nor representations concerning facilities or financing, will form a part of the resulting contract.

8. Service of Protest

Any protest against the award of a contract pursuant to this solicitation shall be served on the HA by obtaining written and dated acknowledgment of receipt from the HA at the address shown on the cover of this solicitation. The determination of the HA with regard to such protest or to proceed to award notwithstanding such protest shall be final unless appealed by the protestor.

9. Offer Submission

Offers shall be submitted as follows and shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and addressed to the office specified in the solicitation. The proposal shall show the hour and date specified in the solicitation for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of the offeror, on the face of the envelope.

It is very important that the offer be properly identified on the face of the envelope as set forth above in order to insure that the date and time of receipt is stamped on the face of the offer envelope. Receiving procedures are: date and time stamp those envelopes identified as proposals and deliver them immediately to the appropriate contracting official, and only date stamp those envelopes which do not contain identification of the contents and deliver them to the appropriate procuring activity only through the routine mail delivery procedure.

[Describe bid or proposal preparation instructions here:]

General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts

Section I – (With or without Maintenance Work)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing
Office of Labor Relations
OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 3/31/2020)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C. 20410-3600; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0157), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this completed form to either of these addressees.

Applicability. This form HUD-5370-C has 2 Sections. These Sections must be inserted into non-construction contracts as described below:

- Non-construction contracts (without maintenance) greater than \$105,000 - use Section I;
- Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance as defined at 24 CFR 968.105) greater than \$2,000 but not more than \$150,000 - use Section II; and
- Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance), greater than \$150,000 – use Sections I and II.

Section I - Clauses for All Non-Construction Contracts greater than \$150,000

1. Definitions

The following definitions are applicable to this contract:

- (a) "Authority or Housing Authority (HA)" means the Housing Authority.
- (b) "Contract" means the contract entered into between the Authority and the Contractor. It includes the contract form, the Certifications and Representations, these contract clauses, and the scope of work. It includes all formal changes to any of those documents by addendum, Change Order, or other modification.
- (c) "Contractor" means the person or other entity entering into the contract with the Authority to perform all of the work required under the contract.
- (d) "Day" means calendar days, unless otherwise stated.
- (e) "HUD" means the Secretary of Housing and Urban development, his delegates, successors, and assigns, and the officers and employees of the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development acting for and on behalf of the Secretary.

2. Changes

- (a) The HA may at any time, by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the general scope of this contract in the services to be performed or supplies to be delivered.
- (b) If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the hourly rate, the not-to-exceed amount of the contract, or the time required for performance of any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed by the order, or otherwise affects the conditions of this contract, the HA shall make an equitable adjustment in the not-to-exceed amount, the hourly rate, the delivery schedule, or other affected terms, and shall modify the contract accordingly.
- (c) The Contractor must assert its right to an equitable adjustment under this clause within 30 days from the date of receipt of the written order. However, if the HA decides that the facts justify it, the HA may receive and act upon a

- proposal submitted before final payment of the contract.
- (d) Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under clause Disputes, herein. However, nothing in this clause shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.
- (e) No services for which an additional cost or fee will be charged by the Contractor shall be furnished without the prior written consent of the HA.

3. Termination for Convenience and Default

- (a) The HA may terminate this contract in whole, or from time to time in part, for the HA's convenience or the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations (default). The HA shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a written Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall: (i) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); and (ii) deliver to the HA all information, reports, papers, and other materials accumulated or generated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.
- (b) If the termination is for the convenience of the HA, the HA shall be liable only for payment for services rendered before the effective date of the termination.
- (c) If the termination is due to the failure of the Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the contract (default), the HA may (i) require the Contractor to deliver to it, in the manner and to the extent directed by the HA, any work as described in subparagraph (a)(ii) above, and compensation be determined in accordance with the Changes clause, paragraph 2, above; (ii) take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise, and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the HA; (iii) withhold any payments to the Contractor, for the purpose of off-set or partial payment, as the case may be, of amounts owed to the HA by the Contractor.
- (d) If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations (default), it is determined that the Contractor had not failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of the HA, and the Contractor shall been titled to payment as described in paragraph (b) above.
- (e) Any disputes with regard to this clause are expressly made subject to the terms of clause titled Disputes herein.

4. Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records

(a) The HA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 years after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's directly pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

- (b) The Contractor agrees to include in first-tier subcontracts under this contract a clause substantially the same as paragraph (a) above. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, excludes purchase orders not exceeding \$10,000.
- (c) The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for records relating to:
 - (i) appeals under the clause titled Disputes;
 - (ii) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract; or,
 - (iii) costs and expenses of this contract to which the HA, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives has taken exception shall continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

5. Rights in Data (Ownership and Proprietary Interest)

The HA shall have exclusive ownership of, all proprietary interest in, and the right to full and exclusive possession of all information, materials and documents discovered or produced by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract, including but not limited to reports, memoranda or letters concerning the research and reporting tasks of this Contract.

6. Energy Efficiency

The contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub.L. 94-163) for the State in which the work under this contract is performed.

7. Disputes

- (a) All disputes arising under or relating to this contract, except for disputes arising under clauses contained in Section III. <u>Labor Standards Provisions</u>, including any claims for damages for the alleged breach there of which are not disposed of by agreement, shall be resolved under this clause.
- (b) All claims by the Contractor shall be made in writing and submitted to the HA. A claim by the HA against the Contractor shall be subject to a written decision by the HA.
- (c) The HA shall, with reasonable promptness, but in no event in no more than 60 days, render a decision concerning any claim hereunder. Unless the Contractor, within 30 days after receipt of the HA's decision, shall notify the HA in writing that it takes exception to such decision, the decision shall be final and conclusive.
- (d) Provided the Contractor has (i) given the notice within the time stated in paragraph (c) above, and (ii) excepted its claim relating to such decision from the final release, and (iii) brought suit against the HA not later than one year after receipt of final payment, or if final payment has not been made, not later than one year after the Contractor has had a reasonable time to respond to a written request by the HA that it submit a final voucher and release, whichever is earlier, then the HA's decision shall not be final or conclusive, but the dispute shall be determined on the merits by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- (e) The Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under the contract, and comply with any decision of the HA.

8. Contract Termination; Debarment

A breach of these Contract clauses may be grounds for termination of the Contract and for debarment or denial of participation in HUD programs as a Contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 24 CFR Part 24.

9. Assignment of Contract

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this contract; except that claims for monies due or to become due from the HA under the contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution. If the Contractor is a partnership, this contract shall inure to the benefit of the surviving or remaining member(s) of such partnership approved by the HA.

10. Certificate and Release

Prior to final payment under this contract, or prior to settlement upon termination of this contract, and as a condition precedent thereto, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the HA a certificate and release, in a form acceptable to the HA, of all claims against the HA by the Contractor under and by virtue of this contract, other than such claims, if any, as may be specifically excepted by the Contractor in stated amounts set forth therein.

11. Organizational Conflicts of Interest

- (a) The Contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work under this contract and a contractor's organizational, financial, contractual or other interests are such that:
 - Award of the contract may result in an unfair competitive advantage; or
 - (ii) The Contractor's objectivity in performing the contract work may be impaired.
- (b) The Contractor agrees that if after award it discovers an organizational conflict of interest with respect to this contract or any task/delivery order under the contract, he or she shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the Contracting Officer which shall include a description of the action which the Contractor has taken or intends to take to eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The HA may, however, terminate the contract or task/delivery order for the convenience of the HA if it would be in the best interest of the HA.
- (c) In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest before the award of this contract and intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the Contracting Officer, the HA may terminate the contract for default.
- (d) The terms of this clause shall be included in all subcontracts and consulting agreements wherein the work to be performed is similar to the service provided by the prime Contractor. The Contractor shall include in such subcontracts and consulting agreements any necessary provisions to eliminate or neutralize conflicts of interest.

12. Inspection and Acceptance

(a) The HA has the right to review, require correction, if necessary, and accept the work products produced by the Contractor. Such review(s) shall be carried out within 30 days so as to not impede the work of the Contractor. Any

- product of work shall be deemed accepted as submitted if the HA does not issue written comments and/or required corrections within 30 days from the date of receipt of such product from the Contractor.
- (b) The Contractor shall make any required corrections promptly at no additional charge and return a revised copy of the product to the HA within 7 days of notification or a later date if extended by the HA.
- (c) Failure by the Contractor to proceed with reasonable promptness to make necessary corrections shall be a default. If the Contractor's submission of corrected work remains unacceptable, the HA may terminate this contract (or the task order involved) or reduce the contract price or cost to reflect the reduced value of services received.

13. Interest of Members of Congress

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America or Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit to arise there from, but this provision shall not be construed to extend to this contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit.

14. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees

No member, officer, or employee of the HA, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the governing body in which the HA was activated, and no other pubic official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.

15. Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause:

"Agency", as defined in 5 U.S.C. 552(f), includes Federal executive departments and agencies as well as independent regulatory commissions and Government corporations, as defined in 31 U.S.C. 9101(1).

"Covered Federal Action" means any of the following Federal actions:

- (i) The awarding of any Federal contract;
- (ii) The making of any Federal grant;
- (iii) The making of any Federal loan;
- (iv) The entering into of any cooperative agreement; and,
- (v) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

Covered Federal action does not include receiving from an agency a commitment providing for the United States to insure or quarantee a loan.

"Indian tribe" and "tribal organization" have the meaning provided in section 4 of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450B). Alaskan Natives are included under the definitions of Indian tribes in that Act.

"Influencing or attempting to influence" means making, with the intent to influence, any communication to or appearance before an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any covered Federal action. "Local government" means a unit of government in a State and, if chartered, established, or otherwise recognized by a State for the performance of a governmental duty, including a local public authority, a special district, an intrastate district, a council of governments, a sponsor group representative organization, and any other instrumentality of a local government.

"Officer or employee of an agency" includes the following individuals who are employed by an agency:

- (i) An individual who is appointed to a position in the Government under title 5, U.S.C., including a position under a temporary appointment;
- (ii) A member of the uniformed services as defined in section 202, title 18, U.S.C.;
- (iii) A special Government employee as defined in section 202, title 18, U.S.C.; and,
- (iv) An individual who is a member of a Federal advisory committee, as defined by the Federal Advisory Committee Act, title 5, appendix 2.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, company, association, authority, firm, partnership, society, State, and local government, regardless of whether such entity is operated for profit or not for profit. This term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal organization, or other Indian organization with respect to expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law.

"Recipient" includes all contractors, subcontractors at any tier, and subgrantees at any tier of the recipient of funds received in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. The term excludes an Indian tribe, tribal organization, or any other Indian organization with respect to expenditures specifically permitted by other Federal law.

"Regularly employed means, with respect to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, an officer or employee who is employed by such person for at least 130 working days within one year immediately preceding the date of the submission that initiates agency consideration of such person for receipt of such contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. An officer or employee who is employed by such person for less than 130 working days within one year immediately preceding the date of submission that initiates agency consideration of such person shall be considered to be regularly employed as soon as he or she is employed by such person for 130 working days.

"State" means a State of the United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, a territory or possession of the United States, an agency or instrumentality of a State, and a multi-State, regional, or interstate entity having governmental duties and powers.

(b) Prohibition.

- ii) Section 1352 of title 31, U.S.C. provides in part that no appropriated funds may be expended by the recipient of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (ii) The prohibition does not apply as follows:

- (1) Agency and legislative liaison by Own Employees.
 - (a) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in paragraph (i) of this section, does not apply in the case of a payment of reasonable compensation made to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, if the payment is for agency and legislative activities not directly related to a covered Federal action.
 - (b) For purposes of paragraph (b)(i)(1)(a) of this clause, providing any information specifically requested by an agency or Congress is permitted at any time.
 - (c) The following agency and legislative liaison activities are permitted at any time only where they are not related to a specific solicitation for any covered Federal action:
 - (1) Discussing with an agency (including individual demonstrations) the qualities and characteristics of the person's products or services, conditions or terms of sale, and service capabilities; and,
 - (2) Technical discussions and other activities regarding the application or adaptation of the person's products or services for an agency's use.
 - (d) The following agency and legislative liaison activities are permitted where they are prior to formal solicitation of any covered Federal action:
 - (1) Providing any information not specifically requested but necessary for an agency to make an informed decision about initiation of a covered Federal action:
 - (2) Technical discussions regarding the preparation of an unsolicited proposal prior to its official submission; and
 - (3) Capability presentations by persons seeking awards from an agency pursuant to the provisions of the Small Business Act, as amended by Public Law 95-507 and other subsequent amendments.
 - (e) Only those activities expressly authorized by subdivision (b)(ii)(1)(a) of this clause are permitted under this clause.
- (2) Professional and technical services.
 - (a) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in subparagraph (b)(i) of this clause, does not apply in the case of-
 - (i) A payment of reasonable compensation made to an officer or employee of a person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action or an extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a covered Federal action, if payment is for professional or technical services rendered directly in the preparation, submission, or negotiation of any bid, proposal, or application for that Federal action or for meeting requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a condition for receiving that Federal action.
 - (ii) Any reasonable payment to a person, other than an officer or employee of a

- person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action or an extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a covered Federal action if the payment is for professional or technical services rendered directly in the preparation, submission, or negotiation of any bid, proposal, or application for that Federal action or for meeting requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a condition for receiving that Federal action. Persons other than officers or employees of a person requesting or receiving a covered Federal action include consultants and trade associations.
- (b) For purposes of subdivision (b)(ii)(2)(a) of clause, "professional and technical services" shall be limited to advice and analysis directly applying any professional or technical discipline.
- (c) Requirements imposed by or pursuant to law as a condition for receiving a covered Federal award include those required by law or regulation, or reasonably expected to be required by law or regulation, and any other requirements in the actual award documents.
- (d) Only those services expressly authorized by subdivisions (b)(ii)(2)(a)(i) and (ii) of this section are permitted under this clause.
- (iii) Selling activities by independent sales representatives.
- (c) The prohibition on the use of appropriated funds, in subparagraph (b)(i) of this clause, does not apply to the following selling activities before an agency by independent sales representatives, provided such activities are prior to formal solicitation by an agency and are specifically limited to the merits of the matter:
 - (i) Discussing with an agency (including individual demonstration) the qualities and characteristics of the person's products or services, conditions or terms of sale, and service capabilities; and
 - (ii) Technical discussions and other activities regarding the application or adaptation of the person's products or services for an agency's use.
- (d) Agreement. In accepting any contract, grant, cooperative agreement, or loan resulting from this solicitation, the person submitting the offer agrees not to make any payment prohibited by this clause.
- (e) Penalties. Any person who makes an expenditure prohibited under paragraph (b) of this clause shall be subject to civil penalties as provided for by 31 U.S.C. 1352. An imposition of a civil penalty does not prevent the Government from seeking any other remedy that may be applicable.
- (f) Cost Allowability. Nothing in this clause is to be interpreted to make allowable or reasonable any costs which would be unallowable or unreasonable in accordance with Part 31 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), or OMB Circulars dealing with cost allowability for recipients of assistance agreements. Conversely, costs made specifically unallowable by the requirements in this clause will not be made allowable under any of the provisions of FAR Part 31 or the relevant OMB Circulars.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- (a) The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (b) The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to (1) employment; (2) upgrading; (3) demotion; (4) transfer; (5) recruitment or recruitment advertising; (6) layoff or termination; (7) rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and (8) selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- (c) The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment the notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer that explain this clause.
- (d) The Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (e) The Contractor shall send, to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, the notice to be provided by the Contracting Officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this clause, and post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (f) The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (g) The Contractor shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246, as amended and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (h) In the event of a determination that the Contractor is not in compliance with this clause or any rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts, or federally assisted construction contracts under the procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246, as amended. In addition, sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked against the Contractor as provided in Executive Order 11246, as amended, the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (i) The Contractor shall include the terms and conditions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued under Executive Order 11246, as amended, so that these terms and conditions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor or purchase order as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance; provided that if the

Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

17. Dissemination or Disclosure of Information

No information or material shall be disseminated or disclosed to the general public, the news media, or any person or organization without prior express written approval by the HA.

18. Contractor's Status

It is understood that the Contractor is an independent contractor and is not to be considered an employee of the HA, or assume any right, privilege or duties of an employee, and shall save harmless the HA and its employees from claims suits, actions and costs of every description resulting from the Contractor's activities on behalf of the HA in connection with this Agreement.

19. Other Contractors

HA may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the site(s) of the work under this contract. The contractor shall fully cooperate with the other contractors and with HA and HUD employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the work under this contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by the Contracting Officer. The contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or HA employee.

20. Liens

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on HA's property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors.

- 21. Training and Employment Opportunities for Residents in the Project Area (Section 3, HUD Act of 1968; 24 CFR 135)
- (a) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUDassisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.
- (b) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the Part 135 regulations.
- (c) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of

- apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall beain.
- (d) The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135.
- (e) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR Part 135.
- (f) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.

22. Procurement of Recovered Materials

- (a) In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Contractor shall procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. The Contractor shall procure items designated in the EPA guidelines that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable unless the Contractor determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a reasonable period of time; (2) fail to meet reasonable performance standards, which shall be determined on the basis of the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only available at an unreasonable price.
- (b) Paragraph (a) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under this contract where: (1) the Contractor purchases in excess of \$10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the preceding Federal fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State; and (ii) purchased a total of in excess of \$10,000 of the item both under and outside that contract.

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-One by, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Virginia, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor" and the Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, hereinafter referred to as the "Authority".

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and the Authority for the consideration stated herein mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. STATEMENT OF WORK. The Contractor shall furnish all supervision, labor, materials, approvals and services as outlined in the proposal to the Authority (Proposal), as and to the extent requested by Authority in accordance with Article 3 below. All services performed must be in strict accordance with the Proposal. All work performed must be in strict accordance with the Request for Proposal (RFP) entitled "Sustainability Study." The Contractor shall perform any and all work in a good and workmanlike manner, consistent with all applicable professional standards, Federal or state law or regulations and such other standards or requirements as the Authority may.

The Contractor recognizes that, pursuant to the terms of the RFP, that this Contract shall not be deemed to give the Contractor the exclusive right to perform all Sustainability Study or Strategic Planning for the Authority.

ARTICLE 2. <u>CONTRACT PRICE</u>. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Authority shall pay the Contractor for the performance of satisfactory work under this Contract, in current funds, the rates specified in the Proposal.

The Authority will make payments to the Contractor within approximately thirty (30) days from submission of invoices and all required supporting documentation for services performed to the sole satisfaction of the Authority.

ARTICLE 3. <u>COMPLETION DATE</u>. The Contractor shall agree to complete this work as specified by the Proposal. This Contract shall not otherwise be amended except by a written instrument executed by both parties.

During any Term or Additional Term, Contractor and its employees performing work hereunder shall remain in good standing with all applicable governmental and/or professional licensing requirements. Any failure so to do shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Contract by the Authority. Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation for work performed hereunder for which the firm (or the applicable employee[s]) was not appropriately licensed and in good standing.

ARTICLE 4. <u>CONTRACT TERM.</u> This contract shall commence on the date first stated above and shall continue for until the Sustainability Study is completed. Pricing for any Additional Term(s) shall be as negotiated and agreed by the parties prior to any Additional Term (but in no event shall pricing be higher than the rates set forth in the Proposal). All terms and conditions of this Contract shall continue to apply to any period of continuation.

ARTICLE 5. <u>CONTRACT DOCUMENTS</u>. This Contract shall consist of the following component parts:

- a. This Instrument and all forms and attachments
- b. RFP 21002 and all Forms and Attachments
- c. Proposal
- d. HUD-5370C, Sections I General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts
- e. Resolution # dated

This Instrument together with the other documents enumerated in this Article 5, which said documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, form the Contract. In the event that any provision of a component part conflicts with another component part, the provision of the component part first enumerated in this Article 4 shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated. The various provisions in Addenda shall be construed in the order of preference of the component part of the Contract which each modifies.

ARTICLE 6. SUBCONTRACTORS

Any subcontract entered into by Contractor for work hereunder is subject to prior approval by Authority. Without limitation, Contractor shall ensure that any contract entered into by and between Contractor and a subcontractor to perform work hereunder requires the subcontractor to comply, as applicable, with Sections 11, 13 and 14 (conflict of interest), and sections 15 (anti-lobbying), 16 (equal employment), and, if determined applicable by CRHA, 21 (section 3) of HUD Form 5370C-General Conditions (Non-Construction) Sections I & II(such compliance shall be required regardless of whether the threshold dollar amount limitation contained in HUD Form 5370C is met). Contractor shall further ensure that no subcontractor has been debarred by HUD or otherwise barred from working on federally-funded programs or projects.

ARTICLE 7. <u>HOLD HARMLESS</u>. The Contractor shall save and hold the Authority, its Commissioners, officers, employees, servants, agents and other contractors harmless from any and all claims, damages, costs, fines, fees and/or expenses resulting, directly or indirectly, from the performance, non-performance or misperformance of this Contract by the Contractor and/or its officers, employees, agents, servants or contractors.

ARTICLE 8. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE. If, through any cause, the Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner his obligation under this Contract, or if the Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Contract, the Authority shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Contract by giving written notice to the Contractor of such termination.

ARTICLE 9. <u>TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CONVENIENCE.</u> Independent of Article 8, the Authority reserves the right to terminate this contract in whole, or from time to time in part, for the Authority's convenience. In the event of termination of this Contract for convenience, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be governed by the applicable provisions of HUD Form 5370C-General Conditions (Non-Construction) Section I.

ARTICLE 10. ASSIGNS/SUCCESSORS

This Contract shall not be assigned except with the prior written approval of the Authority. This Agreement shall be binding upon all assigns approved by the Authority, and successors of both parties hereto.

ARTICLE 11. APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE

This Contract shall be governed by the regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Any and all suits for any claims or for any and every breach or dispute arising out of the Contact shall be maintained in the appropriate court of competent jurisdiction

ARTICLE 12. FORCE MAJURE

If the Contractor is unable to perform or is delayed in the performance of its obligations due to acts of God, natural weather disasters, fire, explosion, flood, war, civil disturbance, terrorism, or any other cause which is not reasonably foreseeable and which is beyond that Contractor's control, then provided that Contractor shall have delivered written notice to the Authority of the cause of the nonperformance within five (5) working days of the initiation of the delay, then such nonperformance shall not be an event of default under this Agreement and the performance shall be resumed at the earliest practicable time after cessation of such interruption. If notice is provided within the manner and timeframe set forth herein, the time for the performance of the obligations hereunder shall be extended for the period of the forced delay.

ARTICLE 13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Neither Party shall have the right to use, in any manner, the name, logos, trademarks, trade names, service marks, or other marks of the other without prior written consent from the other Party. If consent is given, use shall be limited to the time and manner expressly granted in writing by the Party.

ARTICLE 14. IMMIGRATION CLAUSE

Contractor agrees that it does not currently, and shall not during the performance of this contract, knowingly, employ an unauthorized alien, as defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

ARTICLE 15. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

All public bodies shall include in every contract over \$10,000 the following provisions:

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor that the contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor in accordance with this chapter, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract.

ARTICLE 16. FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC BUSINESSES-AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

Contractor, whether organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership, shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity and shall provide proof thereof. Contractor shall not allow its existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of the Contract. Failure by the Contractor to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract.

ARTICLE 17. SEVERABILITY

If any part, term, or provision of this Contract, shall be found by the Court to be legally invalid or unenforceable, then such provision or portion thereof, shall be performed in accordance with applicable laws. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or portion of the contract document shall not affect the validity or any other provision or portion of the contract document.

ARTICLE 18. MODIFICATION

There may be no modification of this Contact, except in writing, executed by the authorized representatives of the Authority and Contractor.

ARTICLE 19. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT

This Contract represents the entire and integrated Contract between the Authority and the contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or Agreements either written or oral.

ARTICLE 20. <u>NOTICE</u>. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and may be provided by facsimile, electronic mail, certified or regular mail, or by means of a nationally-recognized overnight delivery service. Any said notice shall be deemed effective (a) upon receipt of a fax confirmation sheet by the faxing party if sent by fax; (b) upon receipt if delivered by electronic mail; or (c) upon delivery to the address set forth below if sent by certified or regular mail or an overnight delivery service. Actual receipt of notice shall constitute a waiver of any failure to comply with formal notice requirements hereunder. Notice information may be changed by either party upon notice to the other. The initial notice information for each party is as follows:

If to Authority:

Charlottesville Redevelopment and Housing Authority 1000 1st Street South Charlottesville, VA 22902 Attn: Delores Adams

Email: adamsd@cvillerha.com

If to Contractor:

Address Attn: Facsimile: Email:

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused This Instrument to be executed in FOUR (4) original counterparts as of the day and year first above written.

ATTEST:		
	By	
	Title	
	Date	
	Business Address:	
	(Street)	
	(City, State)	(Zip Code)
	CHARLOTTESVILLE AND HOUSING	AUTHORITY
	Title Executive Di	irector
	Date	
	Business A 1000 1 st St Charlottesy	
	(Co	orporate Seal)